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operating expenses, an opportunity for us to earn a reasonable return on “rate base.” “Rate base” is
generally determined by reference to the original cost (net of accumdated depreciation and amortization)
of utility pIant in semice, subject to various adjustmentsfor deferred taxes and other items. Over time,rate
base is increased by additions to utility plant in service and reduced by depreciation, amortization and
retirement of utility plant or write-offs as ordered by the utility commissions.In general, a request of new
rates is made on the basis of a “rate base” as of a date prior to the date of the request and allowabk
operating expenses for a 12-month test period ended prior to the date of the request. Although the current
rate making process provides recovery of some future changes in rate base and operating costs, it does not
reflect all changes in costs for the period in which new retail rates will be in place. This results in a lag
(commonly referred to as “regulatory lag“) between the time we incur costs and the time when we can start
recovering the costs through rates.

The fotIotving table sets forth information regarding eIectric arid water rate increases since January 1,
2009:
Date
Requested

Jurisdiction

.. . . . . .. .. ..
. . . . . . .. .. .
. . . . . . . . .. . .
. . . . . . . . . .. . .
.. .
. .
.
. . ..

Missouri - Electric
September 28,2010
Missouri - Electric
,
October 29,2009
Kan~sts-EEIectric
,
June 17,2011
Kansas - EIcctric
November 4,2009
Oklahoma - Electric.. . . . .. .
June 30,2011
Oklahoma - Electric. . . .. . . . . January 28,2011
March 25,2010
OkIahorna - Elechic . , . .. . . . .
Arkansas - Electric.. .. .. . . . . . August 19,2010
Missouri - Gas. . . - .. . . . ..
June 5,2009

Annual
Increase

Granted

Percent

Increase
Granted

Date
Erective

$18,700,000 4.70%
June 15,2011
$46,800,000 13.40% September IO, 2010
January 1,2012
$ 1,250,000 5.20%
July I, 2010
$ 2,800,000 12.40%
S 240,722 1.66%
January 4,2012
March 1, 2011
$ 1,063,100 9.32%
$ 1,456,979 15.70%
September I, 2010
$ 2,104,321 19.00%
April 13,2011
April 1,2010
$ 2,600,000 4.37%

Eiectric Segment

Miisouri
2010 Rare Case
On September 28,2010, we filed a rate increase request with the MPSC for an annual increase in base
rates for our Missouri electric customers in the amount of $36.5 million, or 9.2%to recover the Iatan 2
costs and other cost of scrvicc items not included in our 2009 Missouri rate case, effective September 10,
2010. A settIement agreement among the parties to the case was reached and filed with the MFSC on
May 27, 2011 reflecting an overall annual increase in rates of $18.7 milIion, or approximately 4.7%
effective on June 15,2011. Due to rate design changes, this rate increase, however, primarily impacts our
winter season rates which generally run from October through May. Also as part of the settlement,
regulatory amortization expense of $14.5 milIion annually and construction accounting terminated as of
June 15,2011. The MPSC approved the scttIement agreement on June I, 2011 and the new rates were
effective on June 15,2011. The approved settlement included authorization of a tracker mechanism for the
SWPA payment associated with the capacity restrictions to be implemented for our Ozark Beach hydro
facility. We agreed to flow the S W A payment, net of tax, back to our customers over a ten year period
using a tracker mechanism resulting in an annual decrease to expenses of approxkately S1.4 million. The
settlement agreement also allowed for a tracker mechanism related to Plum Point, Iatan 2 and Iatan
common plant operating expenses. We will record a regulatory asset or liability for the difference between
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actual expenses (excluding fuel and fuel reIated expenses) and the amount of expense included in base
rates.
2009 Rare Case

On October 29,2009,we filed n request with the MPSC for an annual increase in base rates for our
Missouri clectric customers in the amount of $68.2 million, or 19.6%. This requcst was primarily designed
to allow us to recover capital expenditures associated with environmental upgrades at M a n 1 and our
investment in new generating units at Iatan 2 and the Plum Point Generating Station. As a result of the
delay in the Iatan 2 project, however, we agreed to not seek a permanent increase in this rate case for any
costs associated with the Iatan 2 unit with the exception of that portion of the Iatan common plant needed
to operate Iatan 1.
A stipulated agreement was filed on May 12, 2010, calling for an annual increase of 546.8 million,
provided the PIum Point Generating Station met its in-service criteria by August 15,2010. If the in-senice
criteria w r c not met by such date, a bast: rate increase of $33.1 million was stipulated. The PIum Point
Generating Station compIcted its in-service criteria testing on August 12, 2010, with an in-service date of
August 13, 2010, thus new rates, providing for the full increase of $46.8 million, were effective
September 10, 2010. The $46.8 million authorized increase in annual revenues includes $36.8 million in
base rate revenue and $10 million in regulatory amortization. The regulatory amortization, which is treated
as additional book depreciation for ratemaking purposes and is reflected in the financial statements, was
grantcd to provide additional cash flow through rates. This regulatory amortization is related to our
investments in facilities and environmental upgrades completed during the recent construction cycle. As
agreed in our regulatory plan, we used construction accounting for our Iatan 2 project. As noted above,
regulatory amortization expense of $14.5 million annually and construction accounting terminated as of
June 15,2011 as a result of our 2010 rate case (See Note 3 and Note 11). Wc also agreed to commence an
eighteen year amortization of a deferred asset related to the tax benefits of cost of removal. These lax
benefits were flowed through to customers from 1981 to 2008 and totaled approximately $11.1 million. We
had previously recorded a regulatory asset expecting to recover these benefits from customers in future
periods. We estimated the portion of the amortization period wherc rate recovery would no longer bc
probable for this item and wrote off approximately 51.2 million in the first quarter of 2010. Amortization of
the remaining rcguIatory tax asset began during the third quarter of 2011 (See Note 9).

2007 Rare Cafe
Thc MPSC issued an order on JuIy 30, 2008 in response to a request fled with the MPSC on
October 1, 2007 for an annual increase in base rates for our Missouri elcctric customers. This order
granted an annual increase in revenues for our Missouri electric customers in the amount of $22.0 million,
or 6.7%, based on a 10.8% return on equity. The new rates went into effect August 23,2008.
The MPSC also authorized a fuel adjustment clause for our Missouri customers effective
September I, ZOOS. The MPSC established a base cost for the recovery of fuel and purchased power
expenses used to suppIy energy. The clause permits the distribution to customers of 95% of the changes in
he1 and purchased power costs above or below the base cost. Off-system sdes margins are also part of the
recovery of fuel and purchased power costs. As a result, the off-system saIes margin flows back to the
customer. Rates related to the recovery of fuel and purchased power costs will be modified twice a year
subject to the review and approval by the MPSC. In accordancc with accounting guidance for regdated
activities, 95% of the difference between the actual cost of fuel and purchased power and the base cost of
fuel and purchased power recovered horn our customers is recorded as an adjustment to fuel and
purchased power expense with a corresponding regulatory asset or a reguIatory liabiIity. If the actual fuel
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and purchased power costs are higher or lower than the basc fuel and purchased power costs billed to
customers, 95% of these amountswill be recovered or refunded to our customers when the fuel adjustment
clause is modified.

The MPSC issued its Report and Order on July 30, ZOOS, effective August 9, 2008. The OPC and
intervenors Praxnir, hc.and Eplorer Pipeline Company filed applications for rehearing with the MPSC
regarding this order. On August 12,2008, the MPSC issued its Order Granting Expedited Treatment and
Approving Compliance Illriff Sheets, effective August 23,2008,in which the MPSC approved our tariff
sheets containing our base rates for service rendered on and after August 23,2008, and approved our fuel
adjustment clause tariff sheets effective September 1,2008. On Scptember 3,2008, thc MPSC denied all
pending applications for rehearing.

On October 2, 2008, the OPC and intervenors Praxair, Inc. and Explorer Pipeline Company fded
Petitions for Writ of Review with the Cole County Circuit Court. These actions were consolidated into one
proceeding, briefs were filed and the Cole County Circuit Court heard oral arguments on September 29,
2009. The Cole County Circuit Court issued a r u h g on December 31,2009, affirming the Commission's
Report and Order. OPC, P d r and ExpIorer Pipeline filed appeals with the Western District Court of
Appeals. On August 2, 2011, the Western District Court of Appeals issued a ruling afhning the
Commission's Report and Order.
Tornado Recovey
On June 6,2011, we a e d an Accounting Authority Order with the MPSC requesting authorization to
defer expenses associated with the tornado and to allow for recovery of the Ioss of thc fixed cost
component inchded in our rates resulting from the lost sales. On June 23,2011, Praxair, Inc. and Explorer
Pipeline Company filed as intervenors with the MPSC, who granted their request on July 6, 2011. On
November 15, 2011, following extensive negotiations, the parties filed a joint settlement agreement with
the MPSC allowing us to defer actual incremental operating and maintenance expenses associated with the
repair, restoration and TcbuiIding activities resulting from the tornado. In addition, depreciation related to
the capital expenditures wilI bc deferred and a carrying charge will be accrued. In the event that an electric
rate request is filed in Missouri by June I, 2013, a ten-year amortization of the deferraI will begin. The
settlement does not include deferral of the k e d cost component associated with the reduction in
customers served by us as a resuIt of the tornado. On November 30, 2011, the ME'SC issued an order
approving the setdement agreement, effective December 7, 2011. ApproximateIy 3.6 million has been
deferred under this agreement.
Kansas
2011 Rate Case

On June 17, 2011, we filed an application with the KCC seeking a rate increasc of $1.5 million, or
6.39%. The rate increase was requested to recover the costs associated with our investment in the latan 1,
Iatan 2 and Plum Point generating units and the depreciation and operation and maintenance costs
deferred since the in-service dates of the units. T h e June 17, 2011 filing was made under the KCC's
abbreviated rate case rules which the KCC authorized in our 2009 Kansas rate case. The case included a
request to recover the Iatan and Pfum Point cost deferrals over a 3-year period. A joint settlement
agreement was filed on November 10,2011and approved by the KCC on December 21,2011,resulting in
an increase in annual revenues of $1.25 million, or approximately5.2%.The new rates became effective on
January I, 2012.
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2009 Rare Case

On November 4,2009, we filed a request with the KCC for an annnuaI increase in base rates for our
Kansas eIectric customers in the amount of $5.2 million, or 24.6%. This request was primarily to alIow us
to recover capitat expenditures associated with environmental upgrades at Iatan 1 completed in 2009 and
at our Asbury plant completed in 2008 and our investment in new generating units at Iatan 2, the Plum
Point Gcnerating Station and our Riverton 12 unit that went on line in 2007. A stipulated agreement was
filed on May 4, 2010, and approved by the KCC on June 25, 2010, calling for a $2.5 million, or 12.4%,
increase in base rates effective Jdy 1, 2010. We agreed to defer depreciation and operating and
maintenance expense on both Plum Point and Iatan 2 from their respective in-sewice dates until the
effective date of the rates from the next Kansas case, which was filed on June 17, 2011. We recorded
AFWDC OR all Plum Point and Iatan 2 capital expenditures incurred after January 31,2010.
Oklahoma

On March 25,2010, we requested a capital cost recovery rider (CCRR)at the OCC. The rider was
designed to recover the carrying costs on our capital investment €or generation, transmission and
distribution assets that have been added to the qstem since our last Oklahoma general rate case (May
20031, as well as investments made on an ongoing basis. As requested, the operation of the CCRR would
have increased our operating revenue by approximately $3 million, or approximately33%, in Oklahoma in
a series of three steps to be followed with a general rate case in 2011. On August 30,2010,we were granted
a two-phase Capital Reliability Rider (CRR)by the OCC.The first phase of the rider was put into place
for Oklahoma customers for usage on and after September I, 2010, and resulted in an overall annual base
revenue increase of approximately $1.5 million, or 15.7%. In total, the CRR revenue has been specifically
limited by the OCC to an overall annual revenue increase of $2.6 million, or 27.67% increase. On
January 28,2011 we requested the approval by the OCC of the phase 2 rates of the CRR. We requested an
additional $1.1 million, which brought the total annual revenue under the OCC to approxkately
$2.5 million. On June 30,2011, we fled a request with the OCC for an annual increase in base mtes for our
Oklahoma electric customers in the amount of $0.6 million, or 4.1% over the base ratc and CRR revenues
that were currently in effect. A stipulation and agreement, reached by all parties participating in the case,
was filed on November 16, 2011. This agreement, which was approved by the OCC on January 4,2012,
made rates previously collected under the CRR permanent, and wiII result in a net overall increase of total
annual revenucs of $0.2 million, or approximately 1.66%. The agreement also rcmoves he1 and purchase
power costs horn base rates. Fuel and purchase power costs will be listed as a separate line item, identified
as the Fuel Adjustment Charge, on customer bills.

On August 19,2010,we filed a rate increase request with the Arkansas Public Service Commission
(APSC) for an annuaI increase in base rates €or our Arkansas electric customers in the amount of
53.2 million, or 27.3%. On February 2,2011 we entered into a unanimous settremcnt agreement with the
parties involved. The settlement included a general rate increase of $2.1 million, or 19% and called for the
implementation of a new tariff, the Transmission Cost Recovery Rider (TCR)designed to track changes in
the cost of transmission charges from the Southwest Power Pool, Inc. The existing Energy Cost Recovery
Rider was aIso modified to include the recovery of the costs associated with certain air quality control
materials.The APSC approved the settlement on April 12,2011with the new rates effective ApriI 13,2011.
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FERC

On March 12, 2010, we fiIed GFR tariffs with the FERC which we propose to be utilized for our
wholesale customers. On May 28,2010, the FERC issued an order that conditionally approved our GFR
filing subject to refund effective June 1,2010. As of December 31,2010, we had collected $0.6 miflion in
r3tm subject to refund. On June 30, 2010, three of our on-system wholesale customers were granted
intervention in the GFR rate case. Also on May 28, 2010, we filed a notice with the FERC requesting
termination of the current bundled senice agreements for our wholesale customers effective July 31,2010.
On Jury 28, 2010, the FERC issued an order accepting and suspending the proposed terminations for a
nominal period to become effective Jury 31,2010,subject to refund. The FERC’s order dso consolidated
the GFR and termination proceeding. On September 15, 2010, the parties agreed to a settIement in
principle and on May 24, 2011,we, the Missouri PubIic Utility Alliance and the cities of Monett, Mt.
Vernon and Lockwood, Missouri filed a Settlement Agreement and Offer of Setdement with the FERC
We refunded approximately $1.3 million, including interest, in November 2011 as a result of this
settfernent.
Gas Segment

On June 5, 2009, we filed a request with the MPSC for an annual increase in base rates for our
Missouri gas customers in the amount of $2.9 milIion, or 4.9%. In this filing, we requested recovery of the
ongoing cost of operating and maintaining our 1,200-mile gas distribution qstcm and a return on equity of
113%. On February 24, 2010, the MPSC unanimously approved an agreement among thc Office of the
Public Counsel (OPC), the MPSC staff and Empire for an increase of $2.6 million. Pursuant to the
Agreement, new rates went into effect on April 1, 2010.
COMPETITION
Electric Segment
SPP-RTO
Energv Xmhhnce Services: The Southwest Fowcr Pool (SPP) regional transmission organization (RTO)
energy imbalance services market (EIS) provides real time energy for most participating members within
the SPP regiond footprint. Imbalance energy prices are based on market bids and statuslavailability of
dispatchable generation and transmission within the SPP market footprint. In addition to energy imbalance
service, the SPP RTO performs a real time securityconstrained economic dispatch of all generation
voluntarily offered into the EIS market to the market participants to also serve the native load.
Day Ahead M u r k On April 28,2009, the SPP Regional State Committee (SPP RSC), whose members
inciude state commissioners fiom our four state commissions, and the SPP Board of Directors (SPP BOD)
endorsed a cost benefit report that recommended the SPP RTO move forward with t h e development of a
day-ahead market with unit commitment and co-optimized ancillary services market (Day-Ahead Market).
Implementation of the SPP’s Day-Ahead Market is scheduled for March 2014.As part of the Day-Ahead
Market, the SPP RTO will create, prior to implementation of such market, a single NERC approved
balancing authority to take over balancing authority responsibilities for its members, including Empire,
which is expected to provide operational and economic benefits for our customers.T h e implcrnentation of
the Day-Ahead Market will replace the existing E?S market described above.
SPP Regiortal ll-ammission Development: On October 27, 2009, the SPP BOD endorsed a new
transmission cost allocation method to replace the existing FERC accepted cost alIocation method for new
transmission facilities needed to continue to reIiably and economicarly serve SPP customers, inchding
ours, well into the future. On April 19,2010, SPP filed revisions to its open access transmission pro forma
tariff ( 0 0to adopt a new highwaylbyway cost allocation methodology which require SPP 30D
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approved transmission projccts of 300 kV or larger to be funded by the region at loo%, transmission
projects between 100 kV and 300 kV to receive 33% regionat funding with individual constructing zones to
pay 67% of those projects b d t within the zone. For projects under lOOkV, the constructing zones would
pay 100% of the cost. On May 17, 2010, we filed a joint protest at the FERC with other SPF members
based on our disaprcement with the SPP on the allocation percentages and various othcr issues. On
June 17, 2010, the FERC unconditionally approved the new highwaybyay cost allocation method. We
and other members of the SPP filed a Request for Rehearing OR Jury 19,2010. On October 20,2011, the
FERC issued its Order on Rehearing denying our request to review various aspects of its June 17,2010
order. In mid December 2011, we, along with the other SPP member joint protestors, filed a Petition for
Review and Motion for Stay of Procedures with the U. S. Court of Appeals for the Eight Circuit. We
believe we are aggrieved by the FERC’s orders because the orders authorize the SPP to allocate to us the
costs of transmission projects from which we would receive either no benefits or benefits that are not
roughly commensurate with thc alIocated costs. Our request for a stay of procedures directly relates to the
SPP’s efforts to adopt a method satisfactory to us for analyzing the reasonabhess of the highwaybyway
cost allocation approach and an effective remediation process for imbalanced cost aIlocations. On
December 16, 2011, the Eighth Circuit U.S. Court of Appeals granted our petition and stay request. We
are required to make an update filing to the Court regarding the SPP Board%actions and progress of the
regional allocation review process by May 2012. To date, the SPF’s BOD has approved $1.4 billion in
highwaybyway projects to be constructed by 2017 with an additional $1.5 billion in transmission projects
expcctcd to rcceive approval during the first quarter of 2012.As these projects are constructed, we wilI be
allocated a share of the costs of the projccts pursuant to the FERC accepted highwaybyway regional cost
allocation method. We expect that these operating costs wilI be material, but that they will bc recoverable
in future rates.
Qrlter FERC Activiw

On June 17,2010, FERC issued a Notice of Proposed Rulemaking (NOPR) proposing to amend the
transmission planning and cast allocation requirements established in Order No. 890 to ensure that
FERC-jurisdictional sentices are provided on a basis that is just, reasonable and not unduly discriminatory
or preferential. With respect to transmission planning, FERC said that the proposed rule would:
(1)provide that Iocal and regional transmission planning processes account for transmission needs driven
by public policy requircmcnts established by state or federal laws or regulations; (2) improve coordination
betwecn ncighboring transmission planning regions with respect to interregional facilities;and (3) remove
from FERC-approved t a r B s or a p e m e n & a right of first rcfusal (ROFR)created by those documents
that provides an incumbent transmission provider with an undue advantage over a non-incumbent
transmission dcvehper. Neither incumbent nor non-incumbent transmission facitity developers should, as
a result of a FERGapproved tariff or agrccmcnt, receive different treatment io a regional transmission
planning process, FERC contended. Further, both shouId share similar benefits and obligations
commensuratewith that participation, including the right, consistent with state or local laws or regulations,
to construct and own a facility that it sponsors in a regionaI transmission planning process and that is
selected for inclusion in the regional transmission plan. With respect to cost allocation, the proposed rule
would establish a cIoser link between transmission planning processes and cost allocation and would
require cost allocation methods for intraregional and interregional transmission facilities to satisfy newly
established cost allocation principIcs.
On July 21, 2021, the FERC issued Order No. 1000 (Transmission Planning and Cost Nocation by
Transmission Owning and Operating PubIic Utilities). Ordcr 1000 requires all public utility transmission
providers to (among other things) facilitate non-incumbent transmission developer participation in
regional transmission planning by removing from FERC-approved tariffs and agreements any language
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creating a federal ROFR for aa incumbent transmission provider to consmct transmission faczties
seIected in a regional transmission plan for cost allocation. As a transmission owning member of the SPP
RTO, this could directty affect our rights to build transmission facilities within our sentice territory. A
second key dement of Order 1000 directed transmission providers to develop policy and procedures for
interregional transmission coordination and interregional cost docation. Since we are on the southeastern
seam of the SPP, this poIicy wiII most I i i d y have a direct impact on our customers, primarily through a
potential reduction to our production costs as a result of greater access to lower cost power from within the
SPP, and across this seam and the possible reduction because of the cost sharing for new transmission
projects. We will continue to participate in the SPP stakehoIder processes to understand the impact of
Order 1000 on our ability to construct new facilities within our service territory as wclI as its influence on
promoting construction of transmission projects odnear our borders with our neighbors. Compliance
filings by the SPP to address the ROFR requirements are currently scheduled to be due October 11,2012
and April 13,2013 for interregionaVseams pIanning and cost allocation.
Gas Segment

Non-residential gas customers whose annual usage exceeds certain amounts may purchase natural gas
from a source other than EDG. EDG does not have a non-regulated energy marketing service that sells
natural gas in competition with outside sources. EDG continues to receive non-gas related revenues for
distribution and other services if natural gas is purchased fiom another source by our eligible customers.
Other

- Rate Matters

In accordance with ASC guidance on regulated operations,we currently have deferred approximately
$2.0 million of expense related to rate cases under other non-current assets and dcferred charges. These
amounts WilI be amortized over varying periods based upon thc completion of the specific cases. Based on
past history, we expect all these expenscs to bc recovered in rates.
4. Common Stock
Recent Issues

We successfully completed an equity distriiution program during the second quarter of 2010 and used
the net proceeds to repay short-term debt and for general corporate purposes, including the funding of our
construction program. During 2010, we issued and sold 2,870,985 shares of our common stock pursuant to
this equity distribution program, at an average price per share of $15.41,resulting in net proceeds to us of
approximatdy $51.3 miIIion. Since inception of the program on February 25, 2009, in the aggregate,we
issued and sold 6,535,216 shares pursuant to the program, at an average price per share of $18.36,resulting
k net proceeds to us of approldmatdy $116.0 million. Sales of the shares pursuant to the equity
distribution agreement were made at market prices or as otherwise agreed with U3S, our sdes agent.
Stock Based Compensation
We have several stock-bascd.awards and programs, which are described below. Performance-based
restricted stock awards, time-vested restricted stock, stock options and their relatcd dividend equivalents
are valued as liability awards, in accordancewith fair value guidelines. We allow employees to elect to have
taxes in excess of the minimum statutory requirements wichheId born their awards and, therefore, the
awards are classified as Iiability instruments under the ASC guidance on share based payment. Awards
treated as liability instruments must be revalued each period untiI settled, and cost is accrued over the
requisite service period and adjusted to fair vaIuc at each reporting period until settIement or expiration of
the award.
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We recognized the following amounts in compensation expensc and tax benefits for all of our stockbased awards and programs for the applicable years ended December 31 (in thousands):
2011
2010
2009
-

Compensation expense

TKbenefit rccognized

.......................... $1,765
..........................
614

$3,193 $2,292
1,160
819

Stock Incentive Plans

Our 2006 Stock Incentive Plan (the 2006 Incentive Plan) was adopted by shareholders at the annual
meeting on April 28, 2005 and provides for grants of up to 650,000 shares of common stock through
January 2016. The 2006 Stock Incentive Plan permits grants of stock options and restricted stock to
qualified employees and permits Directors and, if approved by the Compensation Committeeof the Board
of Directors, qualified employees to receive common stock in Iieu of cash. Certain executive officers and
other senior managers appIied to receive annual incentive awards rcIatcd to 2009, 2010 and 2011
performance in the form of Empire common stock rather than cash. These requests were granted by the
Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors under the terms of our 2006 Stock Incentive Plan.
The terms and conditions of any option or stock grant are determined by the Board of Directors
Compensation Committee,within the provisions of these Stock Incentive Plans.
Time-Vested Restricted Stock Awards

Beginning in 2011, timc-vested restricted stock awards wcre. granted to qualified individuals that vest
after a thrcc-year period. No dividend rights accumulate during the vesting period. Time-vested restricted
stock is valued at an amount equal to the fair market value of our common stock on the date of grant. If
employment terminates during the vesting period because of death, retirement, or disability, the
participant is entitled to a pro-rata portion of the the-vested restricted stock awards such participant
would otherwise have earned, which is distributed six months following the date of termination. If
employment is terminated during the vesting period for reasons other than those Iistcd above, the
time-vested restricted stock awards will be forfeited on the date of the termination, unless the Board of
Directors Compensation Committee determines, in its sole discretion, that the participant is entitled to a
pro-rata portion of the award.
A summary of time-vested restrhcd stock activity undcr the plan for 2011 is presented in the table
below:
2011

Number of sham

Outstanding at January I? ...................
Grantcd ................................
Vested
Distributed..
Forfeited
Vested but not distributed.
Outstanding at December 31,

.................................
............................
...............................
..................
................
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10,200
794
661
6,106
133
3,433

Weighted Average
Fair Markcl

Value

$

-

$21.84
$19.32
$21.02

$20.13
$21.84
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Performance-Based Restricted Stack Awards
Performance-based restricted stock awards are granted to qualified individuaIs consisting of the right
to receive a number of shares of common stock at the end of the restricted period assuming performance
criteria are met. The performance measure for the award is the total return to our shareholders over a
three-yearperiod compared with an investor-owned utiIity peer group. T h e threshold level of performance
under thc 2009,2010 and 2011 grants was set at the 20th percentik level of the peer group, target at the
50th percentile lever, and the maximum at the 80th percentile level. Shares wouId be earned at the end of
the three-year performance period as follows: 100% of the target number of shares if the target level of
performance is reached, 50% if the threshold is reached, and 200% if the percentile ranking is at or above
the maximum, with the number of shares interpolated between these levels. However, no shares would be
payable if the threshord level is not reached. As noted previously, all performance-based restricted stock
awards are classified as liability instruments, which must be revalued each period until settled. The fair
value of the outstanding restricted stock awards was estimated as of December 31,2011, 2010 and 2009
using a Monte Carlo option valuation model. The assumptions used in the model for each grant year are
noted in the following table:
Fak Value of Grants Outstanding
2011
2010

..............
....
W c c t e d volatility of peer group stock ..
Expected dividend yieId on Empire stock
Expected forfeiture rates ............
PIan cycle. ......................
Fair value percentage ..............
Weighted average fair value per share . .
Risk-free interest rate

Expected volatility of Empire stock

0.12% to 0.23%
23.8%
15.7% to 57.4%
4.7%
3%
3 years
51.0% to 75.0%
$13.67

at December 31,

2009

0.47% to L08%
28.S%

0.30% to 0.62%
26.9%
21.7% to 32.7%

22.1% to 80.9%

6.5%
3%
3 years
138.0% to 193.7%
$37.17

7.6%
3%
3 years
87.0% to 132.0%
$21.00

Non-vested restricted stock awards (based on target number) as of December 31,201 1,2010 and 2009
and c h a n p during the year ended December 31,2011,2010 and 2009 were as follows:
2011
Weigbted

Number of

Average
Grant Date

47,500
10,900
(39,621)

$19.86
$21.84
$21.92

18,623.

$21.92

Shares

......
.................
Awarded ..................
Awarded in excess of target ....
Not awarded ...............
Nonvcsted at December 31, ....
Outstanding at January 1,
Granted..

-

h i r Valuc

2009

2010

Number of
Shares

Weighted
Avcrage

Grant Date
h I r %due

52,200
13,000

$21.57
$18.36

(15,104)

$23.81

'

Number Of
Sham

Weighted
Aviiage
Grant Dale
Fair Value

5T300
13,500
(12,394)

S22.64
$18.12
$22.23

5 (1,206) $ 52,200
$21.57
37,400
$19.28
$19.86
At December 31, 2011 and 2010, unrecognized compensation expense d a t e d to estimated
outstanding awards was $0.1 million and $0.4 million, repectiveIy.

s -

(2,596)
47,500

Stock Options

Beginning in 2011, we began issuing time-vested restricted stock in lieu of stock options and dividend
equivaIents. Stock options were issued with an exercise price equal to the fair market value of the shares on
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the date of grant, become exercisable after three years and expire ten years after the date granted.
Participants' options that are not vested become forfeited when participants leave Empire except for
terminations of employment under certain specified circumstances. Dividend equivalent awards were aIso
issued to the recipicnts of the stock options under which dividend equivalents will be accurndated for the
three-year period until the option becomes exercisabIc. Dividend equivalents cease to be accumulated on
the date that a participant leaves Empire,and the accumdated dividend equivdents are forfeited when a
participant leaves the Company, except for terminations of empIoyment under certain specified
circumstances. There were no stock options or dividend equivdents granted in 2011. The fair value per
dividend equivalent grants for 2009, 2010 and outstanding at December 31, 2011, were $3.20 and $2.92,
respectively.

The dividend equivalents are accumulated for the three-year period and are converted to shares of
common stock bascd on the fair market value of the shares on the date converted. As pcr Section 409A of
the hnterna1 Revenue Code, added by the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004, the dividend equivalent
awards vest and are payable in fully vested shares of our common stock on the third anniversary of the
grant date (conversion date) or at a change in contrd and not dependent upon the exercise of the related
option.

As noted previously, all outstanding stock option awards are classifiied as liability instruments, which
must be rcvdued each period unti1 settlcd. Stock option grants vest upon satisfaction of service conditions.
The cost of the awards is generally recognized over the requisite (explicit) service period. The fair value of
the outstanding options was estimated as of December 31, 2011,2010 and 2009, under a Hack-Scholes
methodology. T h e assumptions used in the valuations are shown below:
Fair Value of Graats OutstnndinE at Dcccmber 31,
2010
2009
2011

Risk-free interest rate ................... 0.12% to 0.72% 0.45% to 2.34%
6.5%
Dividend yield ........................
4.7%
Expected volatility. .....................
25.0%
23.0%
Expected life in months.. ................
78
78
Market value .........................
$21.09
$22.20
Weighted average fair value per option. ......
92.08
$2.02

1.11% to 2.98%
7.6%
24.0%
78

$18.73
$0.97

A summary of option activity under the plan during the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and
2009 is prcsented below:
2011
Weighted
Average

Exercise

2010
Wejghted

2009

Weighted
Averagc

Avenge
Exercise
Price

Bercise

232,600 $22.19
34,800 $18.36

205,600 $22.73
27,000 $18.12

Options Price
OptIons
Options
Price
--

............. 267,400 $21.69
..........................
o s .........................
77,100 $22.02
.......... 190,300 $21.56
Exercisable, end of year .............. =
128,500 $23.15

Outstanding at January 1,
Granted
Exercised
Outstanding at December 31,

$

267,400 $21.69 232,600
149,200 $23.04
85,000

$22.19
$22.46

The intrinsic value of the unexercised options is the difference between thc Company's closing stock
price on the last day of the period and the exercise price multiplied by the number of in-thc-moncy
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options, had all option holders exercised their options on the last day of the period. The intrinsic value is
zero if such dosing price is less than the exercise price. The tabk below shows the aggregate intrinsic
values at December 31,2011,2010 and 2009:
2011

.......
$0.2
................. 5.1 years
................ $18.12 to $23.81

Aggregate intrinsic value (in millions)

Weighted-average rcmaining contractual life of
outstandingoptions..
Range of exercise prices.
Total unrecognized compensation expense (in
millions) related to non-vested options and
d a t e d dividend equivalents granted under
thepl .............................
Recognition period..

...................

2010

2009

$0.3

$0.0

6.6 years
6.6 years
$18.12 to $23.81 $18.12 to $23.81

$0.1

$0.2
1 to 3 years

1 year

$0.2

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

Our ErnpIoyee Stock Purchase Plan (ESPP)permits the grant to eligible employees of options to
purchase common stock at 90% of the lower of market value at date of grant or at date of exercise. The
lookback feature of this pian is valued at 90% of the Black-Scholes methodology plus 10% of the
maximum subscription price. As of December 31,2011,there were 261,792 shares avdable for issuance in
this plan.

.........
...................
........................
.........................

Subscriptions outstanding at December 31,
Maximum subscription price.
Shares of stock issued
Stock issuancc price.

2011
2010
2009
-

70,756 71,326 68,591
17.27(') $ 16.06 $ 14.62
69,229
66,723 44,265

$

$ 16.06

$ 14.62

$ 14.10

(1) Stock will be issued on the closing date of the purchase period, which runs from June 1,2011
to May 31,2012.
Assumptions for vduation of these shares are shown in the table below.

..............
.........................
..............................
..........................
........................
.................................

Weighted average fair value of grants
Risk-fTee interest rate
Dividend yield.
Expected volatility(1).
Expected life in months
Grant date

2011
2010
2009
-

S 3.17 $ 2.28 6 3.26
0.18% 0.35% 0.48%
2.60%
7.20% 7.90%
22.00% 17.00% 40.00%
12
12
12
6/1/11

6/1/10

61U09

(1) One-year historic volaaty
Stock Unit PIan for Directors

Our Stock Unit PIan for directors (Stock Unit Plan) provides a stock-based compensation program for
directors. This plan enhances our ability to attract and retain competent and experienced directors and
allows the directors the opportunity to accumulate compensation in the form of common stock units. The
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Stock Unit Plan also provides directors the opportunity to convert previously earned cash retirement
benefits to common stock units. All eligible directors who had benefits under the prior cash retirement
pIan converted their cash retirement benefits to common stock units.
A total of 400,000 shares are authorized under this plan. Each cumrnon stock unit earns dividends in
the form of common stock units and can be redeemed for shares of common stock. Thc number of units
granted annuaUy is computed by dividing an annual credit (determined by the Compensation Committee)
by the fair market value of OUT common stock OR January 1 of the year the units are granted. Common
stock unit dividends are computed based on the fair market value of our stock on the dividend’s record
date. We record the related compensation expense at the time we make the accrual for the directors’
benefits as the directors provide services. Shares accrued to directors’ accounts and sham available for
issuance under this pIan at December 31 are shown in the table below:
2011
2010
-

Shares accrued to directors’ accounts. ....................
Shares available for issuance

133,956

...........................

280,282

139,912
311,523

Units accrued for senice and dividends as welI as units redeemed for common stock at December 31
are shown in the table below:
2011
2010
2009
-

Units accrued for service and dividends .............. 25,287 33,364 33,024
31,243 6,347 34,853
Units redeemed for common stock

.................

401(k) Plan and ESOP
Our Employee 401(k) Plan and ESOP (the 40l(k) flan) allows participating employees to defer up to
25% of their annual compensation up to an Internal Revenue Service specified limit. We match 50% of
each employee’s deferrals by contributing shares of our common stock, with such matching contributions
not to exceed 3% of the employee’s eligible compensation. We record the compensation expense at the
time the quarterIy matching contributions are made to the plan. At December 31, 2011 and 2010, there
were 36,038 and 104,GOl shares availablc to bc issued, respectively.

Shares contributed

.............................

2011
20x0
2009
-

68,523

64,830

73,408

Dividends

HoIders of our common stock are entitled to dividends if, as, and when declared by the Board of
Directors, out of funds legally available therefore, subject to the prior rights of holders of any outstanding
cumulative preferred stock and preferencc stock. Payment of dividends is determincd by our Board of
Directors after considering all relevant factors, including the amount of our retained earnings (which is
essentiaIIy our accumulated net income Iess dividend payouts). A reduction of our dividend per share,
partially or in whole, could have an adverse effect on our common stock price. In response to the expected
loss of revenues resulting from the May 22,2011 tornado, our current level of retained earnings and other
relevant factors, our Board of Directors suspended our quarterIy dividend for the K i d and fourth quarters
of 2011. On February 2,1012, the Board of Directors re-established the dividend and declared a quarterly
dividend of $0.25 per share on common stock payable on March 15, 2012 to holdcrs of record as of
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March 1,2012. As of December 31,2011, our retained earnings bdance was $33.7 million (compared to
$55 milIion at December 31, 2010) after paying out $26.7 million in dividends during 2011.
Under Kansas corporate Iaw, our Board of Directors may only declare and pay dividends out of our
surpIus or, if there is no surplus, out of our net profirs for the fiscal year in which the dividend is declared
or the preceding fiscaI year, or both. Our surplus, under Kansas law, is equal to our retained earnings plus
accumulated other comprehensive income/(loss), net of income tax However, Kansas law docs pennit,
under certain circumstances, our Board of Directors to transfer amounts h m capita1 in excess of par value
to surpIus. In addition, Section 305(a) of the Federal Power Act (FPA) prohibits the payment by a utility of
dividends from any funds “properly included in capital account”. There are no additional rules or
regulations issued by the FERC under the FPA CIarifyhg the meaning of this Iimitation. However, several
decisions by the FERC on specific dividend proposaIs suggest that any determination would be based on a
fact-intensive analysis of the spccif~cfacts and circumstances surrounding the utility and the dividend in
question, with particular focus on the impact of the proposed dividend on the liquidity and financial
condition of the utiIity.

In addition, the EDE Mortgage and our Restated Articles contain certain dividend restrictions. The
most restrictive of thcse is contained in the EDE Mortgage, which provides that we may not declare or pay
any dividends (othcr than dividends payabIc in shares of our common stock) or make any otber
distribution on, or purchase (other than with thc proceeds of additional common stock financing) any
shares of, our w m o n stock if the cumulative aggregate amount thereof after August 31, 1944 (exclusive
of the first quarterly dividend of $98,000 paid after said date) would exceed the sum of $10.75 million and
the earned surplus (as defined in the EDE Mortgage) accumulated subsequent to August 31,1944, or the
date of succession in the event that another corporation succeeds to our rights and liabihties by a merger
or wnsoIidation. On June 9,2011, we amended the EDE Mortgage in order to provide us with additional
flexibility to pay dividends to our sharchoIders by permitting the payment of any dividend or distribution
on, or purchase of, shares of its common stock withii 60 days after the related date of declaration or notice
of such dividend, distribution or purchase if (i) on the date of declaration or notice, such dividend,
distribution or purchase would have complied with the provisions of the EDE Mortgage and (i) as of the
last day of the cdcndar month ended immediately preceding the date of such payment, our ratio of total
indebtedness to total capitalization (after giving pro forma effect to the payment of such dividend,
distribution, or purchase) was not more than 0.625 to 1.
5.

Preferred and Preference Stock

We have 2.5 million s h a m of preference stock authorized, including 0.5 million shares of Series A
Participating Preference Stock, none of which have been issued. We have 5 million shares of $10.00 par
value cumulative preferred stock authorized. There ivas no preferred stock issued and outstanding at
December 31,2011 or 2010.
Preference Stock Purchase Rights

Our sharehoIder rights plan provided each of the common stockholders one Preference Stock
Purchase Right (Right) for each share of common stock owned. The shareholder rights plan, dated as of
July 26,2000, expired on July 25,2010, pursuant to its terms. As a resuit of the expiration, no rights were
outstanding at December 31,2011 or 2010.
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6.

Long-Term Debt

At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the balance of long-term debt outstanding was as folIows (in
thousands):
2011

First mortgage bonds (EDE):
7.20% Series due 2016
$ 25,000
5.3% PolIution ControI Series due 2013(')
8,000
5.2% Pollution Control Series due 2013(l)
5,200
5.875% Series due 2037c)
80,000
6.375% Series due 201Sp)
90,000
4.65% Series due 2020(2)........................................ 100,000
5.20% Series due 2040(?1.. ...................................... 50,000
7.0% Series due 2 0 2 4 W . .
74,829
First mortgage bonds (EDG):
6.82% Series due 2036c)).
55,000

.........................................
...........................
...........................
.......................................
.......................................
......................................
.......................................

488,029

Senior Notes, 4.50% Series due 2013(2)............................... 98,000
Senior Notes, 6.70% Series due 2033p) ............................... 62,000
Senior Notes, 5.80% Scries due 2035GI ............................... 40,000

.......................................................
...................................

Other
Less unamortized net discount

6,087
(924)
693,192

2010

s 25,000
8,000
5,200
30,000
90,000

100,000
50,000
74,854

55,000

488,054

98,000
62,000
40,000
6,932
(1,033)
693,953

Less current obligations of long-term debt ...........................
(614)
(641)
Less current obligations under capital lease ..........................
(292)
(267)
5693,072
Total long-term debt ......................................... $692,259
(I) We may redeem some or all of the notes at any time at 100% of their principal amount, plus accrued
and unpaid interest to the redemption date.
(2) We may rcdeern some or all of the notes at any time at 100% of their principal amount, plus a
make-whole premium, plus accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption date.

(3) We may redeem some or all of the bonds at any time on or after A p d 1, 2012, at 100% of the
principal amount of the bonds plus accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption date.
Debt Financing Activities

On August 25, 2010, we issued $50 million principaI amount of 5.20% first mortgage bonds due
September I, 2040. The net proceeds (after payment of expenses) of approximately $49.1 million were
used to redeem iF4S.3 million aggregate principal amount of our Senior Notes,7.05% Series due 2022 on
August 27,2010,
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On May 28,2010, we issued $100 million principal amount of 4.65% h t mortgage bonds due June 1,
2020. T h e net proceeds (after payment of expenses) of approximately $98.8 million, were used to redeem
all 2 million outstanding shares of our 8.5% trust preferred securities, totaling $50 milfion, on June 28,
2010, and to repay short-term debt which was incurred, in part, to fund the repayment, at maturity, of our
6.5% hrst mortgage bonds due 2010.
On January 28,2021, we filed a $400 million shelf registration statement with the SEC covering our
common stock, unsecured debt securities, preference stock, and first mortgage bonds. This shelf
registration statement became effective on February 7,2011.We have received regulatory approval for the
issuance of securities under this shelf from d l four states in our electric service territory, but we may only
issue up to $250 million of such securities in the form of first mortgage bonds. We plan to use proceeds
fiom offerings made pursuant to this shelf to fund capital expenditures, refinancings of existing debt or
g e n e d corporate needs during the three-year effective period.

The principal amount of all series of first mortgage bonds outstanding at any one time under the ED€
Mortgage is limited by terms of the mortgage to $3. biilion. Substantially all of the property, pImt and
equipment of The Empire District Electric Company (but not its subsidiaries) is subject to the lien of the
EDE Mortgage. Restrictions in the €DE mortgage bond indenture could affect our liquidity. The EDE
Mortgage contains a requirement that for new first mortgage bonds to be issued, our net e-gs
(as
defined in the EDE Mortgage) for any tweIve consecutive months within the fifteen months preceding
issuance must be N O times the annual interest requirements (as defined in the EDE Mortgage) on all first
mortgage bonds then outstanding and on the prospective issue of new first mortgage bonds. Our earnings
for the year ended December 31,2011 would permit us to issue approximately $511.0 million of new first
mortgage bonds based on this test with an assumed intcrest rate of 6.0%. In addition to the interest
coverage requirement, the EDE Mortgage provides that new bonds must be issued against, among othcr
things, retired bonds or 60% of net property additions. At December 31,2011, we had retired bonds and
net property additions which would enable the issuance of at least $697.6 million principal amount of
bonds if the annual intercst requirements are met. As of December 31,2011,we are in compliance with all
restrictive covenants of the EDE Mortgage.
The principal amount of all series of first mortgage bonds outstanding at any one time undcr the EDG
Mortgage is limited by terms of the mortgagc to $300 milIion. Substantially all of the property, plant and
equipment of The Empire District Gas Company is subject to the lien of the EDG Mortgage. T h e EDG
Mortgagc contains a requirement that for new first mortgage bonds to be issued, the amount of such new
hrst mortgage bonds shall not exceed 75% of the cost of property additions acquired after the date of the
Missouri Gas acquisition. The mortgage also contains a rimitation on the issuance by EDG of debt
(inchding first mortgage bonds, but excluding short-term debt incurred in the ordinary course under
working capital facilities) unless, after giving effcct to such issuance, EDG's ratio of EBITDA (defined as
net income plus interest, taxes, depreciation, amortization and certain other non-cash charges) to interest
charges for the most recent four f~~scal
quarters is at least 2.0 to 1. As of December 31,2011, this test would
allow us to issue approximately $10.7 million principal amount of new first mortgage bonds.

T h e carrying amount of our total debt exclusive of capita1 leases at December 31, 2011 was
$688 million compared to a fair market value of approximately $752 million. The carrying amount of our
total debt exclusive of capital leases as of December 31,2010 was $689 million, compared to a fair value of
approximatcly $697 million. These estimates were based on the quoted market prices for the same or
s i n i l a r issues or on the current rates offered to us for debt of the same remaining maturities. The
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estimated fair market value may not represent the actual value that couId have been realized as of year-end
or that will be realizable in the future.
Payments Due By Period
Reg u1a1ed
capital
Entity Debt
Lease
Total
ObIigations ObUgatioos

Long-Tcrm Debt Payout Schedule
( b d u d h g Unamortized Discount
(in thousands)

20r2 ...............................................$ 933 $ 641
2013 ............................................... 111,913
111,615
2014 ...............................................
274
2015 ...............................................
292
2016 ............................................... 25,307
25,000
Thereafter .......................................... 555,397
551.829
Total long-term debt obligations ......................... 694,116 S689,OSS
Less current obligations and unamortized discount .............
1,857
ntal long-term debt ................................. $692,259

$ 292

298
274
292

307
3,568
$5,031
=

7. Short-term Borrowings
At December 31, 2011, total short-term borrowings consisted of $12.0 million in commercial paper
and no borrowings from our line of credit. Short-tcm borrowings outstanding averaged $5.8 million and
$36.3 miHion daily during 2011 and 2010, respectively, with the highest month-end balances being
$18.5 miUion and $74.0 million, respectively. The wcighted average interest rates during 2011 and 2010
were 0.98% and 1.74%in each period. The weighted average interest rate of borrowings outstanding at
December 31, 2011 and 2010 was 0.85% and 1.15%, respectively.
On January 17,2012, we entered into the Third Amended and Restated Unsecured Credit Agreement
which amended and restated our Second Amended and Restated Unsecured Credit Agreement dated
January 26, 2010. This agreement extended the termination date of the revolving credit facility from
January 26,2013to January 17,2017.The agreement also removcs the letter of credit facility and includes
a swinghe loan facility with a $15 miUion swingline loan sublimit. The aggregate amount of the revoIving
credit commitments remains $150 million, inclusive of the $15 million swingline loan sublimit. In addition,
the pricing and fees under the facility were amended. Intcrest on borrowings under the facility accrues at a
rate equal to, at our option, (i) the highest of (A) the bank's prime commercia1 rate, @) the federal funds
effective rate plus 0.5% or (C)one month LIBOR plus LO%, plus a margin or (ii) one month, two month
or three month LIBOR, in each case, plus a margin. Each margin is based on our current credit ratings and
the pricing schcdulc in the facility. As of the date hereof, and based on our current credit ratings, the
LIBOR margin under the facility decreased horn 2.70% to 1.25%. A faciIity fee is payable quarterly on the
full amount of the commitments under the facility based on our current credit ratings (the fee is currently
0.25%). In addition, upon entering into the amended and restated facility, we paid an upfront fee to the
revolving credit banks of $2G2,500 in the aggregate. There were no other materid changcs to the terms of
the facility.
The faciIity is used for working capital, general corporate purposes and to back-up our use of
commercial paper. This facility requires our total indebtedness to be less than 62.5% of our total
capitalization at the end of each fiscaI quarter and our EBITDA (defined as net income plus interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortization) to be at Icast two times our interest charges for the trailing four fiscal
quarters at the end of each fiscal quarter. Faflure to maintain these ratios wiIl result in an event of default
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under the credit facility and will prohibit us from borrowing funds thereunder. As of December 31,2011,
ratios. Our total indebtedness is 50.4% of our total capitalization as of
December 31,2011 and our EBITDA is 5.0 times our interest charges. This credit facility is also subject to
cross-default if we default on in excess of $10 million in the aggregate on our other indebtedness. This
arrangement does not serve to legally restrict the use of our cash in the normal course of operations. There
were no outstanding borrowings under this agreement at December 31,2011. However, $12.0million was
used to back up our outstanding commercial paper.
we are in compliance with these

8.

Retirement Benefits

We record retirement benefits in accordance with the ASC guidance on accounting for pension and
other poswetirement benefits, and have recorded the appropriate IiabiIities to reflect the unfunded status
of our benefit pians, with offsetting entries to a regulatory asset, because we beIieve it is probable the
unfunded amount of these plans wiIl be afforded rate recovery. The tax effects of these entries are
reflected as deferred tax assets and liabilities and regulatory liabilities.
AnnuaUy we evaluate the discount rate, retirement age, compensation rate increases, expected return
on plan assets and healthcare cost trend rate assumptions related to pension benefit and post-retirement
medical plan. We utiiize an interest rate yield curve to determine an appropriate discount rate. The yield
curye is constructed based on the yields on over 500 bigh-quality, non-calIable corporate bonds with
maturities between zero and thirty years. A theoretical spot rate curve constructed fiom this yield curve is
then used to discount the annual benefit cash flows of the Empire pension pIan and develop a single point
discount rate matching the plan’s payout structure. In evahating these assumptions, many factors are
considered, including, current market conditions, asset allocations, changes in demographics and the views
of leading financial advisors and economists. In evaluating the expected retirement age assumption,we
consider the retirement ages of past employees eligible for pension and mcdical benefits together with
expectations of future retirement ages. It is reasonably possible that changes in these assumptions will
occur in the near tern and, due to the uncertainties inherent in setting assumptions, thc e€fect of such
changes could be material to the Campany’s consolidated financial statements, A roll foiward technique is
used to value the year ending pension obligations. The roll forward technique values the year-end
obligation by rolling forward the beginning-of-year obligation using the demographic assumptions shown
below. The economic assumptions me updated as ofthe end of the year. AU of the benefit plans have been
measured as of December 31,2011, consistent with previous years. See Note 1.
Pensions

Our noncontributory defined benefit pension plan includes alI employees meeting minimum age and
service requirements. The benefits are based OR years of service and the employee’s average annual basic
earnings. Annual contributions to the plan are at least equal to the greater of either minimum funding
requirements of ERISA or the accrued cost of the Plan, as required by the Missouri Public Serricc
Commission. We also have a supplemental retirement program (“SEW”) for designated officers of the
Company, which we fund from Company funds as the benefits are paid.

Our net pension Iiability increased $7.6 million and $4.5 million in 2011 and 2010, respectively. This
increase was recorded as an increase in regulatory assets as we beBeve it is probable of recovery through
customer rates based on rate orders received in our jurisdictions. Our contribution is estimated to be
approximately $11.1 million for 2012. We expect future pension funding commitments to continue at Ieast
at the level of our accrued cost, as required by our regulator. The actual minimum funding requirements
will be determined based on the results o€ the actuarial valuations and, in the case of 2013, the
performance of our pension assets during 2012.
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Expected benefit payments are as follows (in miIIions):

-

Paymcnts €momThst

2012

$ 8.4

2013

9.0

Year

.................................
.................................
2014 .................................
2015 .................................
2016 .................................
2017 - 2021 ............................

Payments from
Company Funds

$0.3
0.3
0.3
0.3

9.7
10.4

21.1

0.3
$1.9

$65.9

Other Postretirement Benefits (OPEB)

We provide certain healthcare and life insurance benefits to cIigible retired employees, their
dependents and survivors through msts we have established. Participants generally become eligible for
retiree healthcare benefits after reaching age 55 with 5 years of service.
Our net Iiabitity increased $0.6 million and $4.3 milIion in 2011 and 2010,respectivdy. T h e increase
was recorded as an increase in regulatory assets as we believe it is probable of recovery through customer
rates based on rate orders received in our jurisdictions. Our funding policy is to contribute annually an
amount at least equal to the actuarial cost of postretirement benefits. We expect to be required to fund
approximately S3.2 million in 2012.

Estimated benefit payments are as follows (in rniIlions):
Expected Federal
Subsidy

Payments from
Company Funds

2.6

$0.3
0.3

$0.1
0.1

-

Payments from 'Rust

2012
2013

S 2.3

Year

.....................
.....................
2014 .....................
2015 .....................
2016 .....................
2017-2021 ................

2.9

0.4

0.1

3.1

0.4

3.5

0.5

$21.3

$3.1

0.1
0.2
$0.9

The following tables set forth the Company's benefit plans' projected benefit obIigations, the fair
value of the plans' assets and the funded status (in thousands).

Reconciliation of Projected Ben@ Obl&&rts:
OPEB

Pension
2011

...
.....................
..............-........
..............
Pian participant's contribution .........
Benefits and expenses paid.. ..........
FederaI subsidy ....................
Benefit obligation at end of year .......
Benefit obligation at beginning of year
Service cost,.
Interest cost
Net actuaria1 (gain)/loss

2010

$169,055
4,887
1Oa4O5
10,115
20,869
10,946

$186,840

5,596

-

(8,622)
c

I

(8,263)
I

2010
----

2011

2010

$2,895
93

$2,575
70

183

153

1,883

160

2011

$80,938 $6931I
2,266
2,138
4,383
(2,136)

863
(3,261)
173

4,329
6,454

949
(2,966)

123
--

$215,088 $186,840 54,863
$2,895 S83,226 $80,938
- - = -
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Reconciliation of Fair Value of Plan Assets:
Pension
2011

--

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of

........................ $120,353
- gah/(loss).
(G25)
Employer contribution ............... 29,869
Benefits paid. .....................
(8,622)
Plan participant's contribution .........
Federal subsidy ....................

year...
Actual return on plan assets

... $140,975

2010

s - $ -

$107,076
11,740

$56,730 $50,036
279
3,544
(3,160)

9,700

(8,163)

4,825

3,681
(Z845)
917

826

-

I

Fair value of plan assets at end of year

OPEB

SERF

2011

20x0

165
116
$58,384 $56,730

--

$120,353

Recunciliuiion of Funded Stahrs:
SEW

Pension
2011

--

........ $ 140,975
...... (215,088)
................. $ (74,113)

Fairvdue of plan assets..
Projected benefit obligations.
Funded status

2010

2011

2010

OPE3
2011

2010

- $ - $ 58,384 $ 56,730
(4,863) (2,895) (83,226) (80,938)

$ 120,353 $

(186,840)
$

--

(66,487) %(4,863) $(2,895) $(24,842) $(24,208)

The employee pension ~Ianaccumulated benefit obligation at December 31, 2011 and 2010 is
presented in the following table (in thousands):
Pension Benefits
2011
20x0

Accumulated benefit obligation

..........

$164,340

$191,2%

SEW
2010
-$4,670
$2,431
--

2011

Amounts recognized in the baIance sheet consist of (in thousands):
OPEB

SEW

Pension

- - - - - -2010
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities. .. $ - $ - $ 311 S 64 $ 136 S 121
2011

2010

2011

2010

2011

Pension and other postretirement benefit
obligation ........................
$74,113 $66,487 $4,552 $2,831 $24,706 $24,087
Nct periodic benefit pension cost for 2011, 2010 and 2009, some of which is capitdized as a
component of labor cost and some of which is deferred as a regulatory asset (sec Note 3), is comprised of
the folIoWiag components (in thousands):

Net Periodic Pension Benefit Cost:
2011

...................... $ 5,596
..................... 10,405
........ (11,139)
, ., .
532
....... 5,494
........... S 10,888

Service cost
Interest cost.
Expected return on plan assets
Amortization of prior service cost(').
Amortization of actuarial loss(l).
Net periodic benefit cost..

107

OPEB

Pension
2010

2009

2011

2010
2009
-

4,612 $2,266 S 2,138
4,383
4,329
9,876
(9,847) (10,379) (4,157) (3,844)
604 (1,011) (1,011)
531
1,499
1.762
3,996
3,182
$ 9,682 $ 7,895 $ 3,243 $ 3,111
=

$ 4,887

10,115

-

$

$ 1,830

3,907
(3,843)
(1,011)
869
$ 1,752
-
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Net Periodic Pension Ben@ Cost:
SEW
2010
2009
- 2011

Senicecost ................................................... $ 93 $ 70 $ 61
Interest cost. .................................................. 183 153 148
- Expected return on plan assets
Amortization of prior service cost(*)
(8)
(8)
(81
Amortization of actuarial loss(1).
171 96 103
Net periodic benefit cost.
$439
$311 $304
- -

.....................................
..................................
....................................
.........................................-

- =

(1) Amounts are amortized from our regulatory asset origjnally recorded upon recognizing our net
pension liability OR the balance sheet.

The tables below present the activity in the regulatory asset accounts for the year (in thousands).
Amoun! RemgnIzed

Regulatory
Assets

Pension
SEW

..........................

BegInning

Current Year

Amortization

Balance
12t3UIO

Actuadnl

of Actuarial

$67,050

32,632
1,884
1,740

(5,494)
(171)

...........................$ 1,291
OPEB ...........................
$16,031

lmss

Amortiza tlon
of Prior

Ending
BaIante
133nfllf

Sedcc
(Cost)/

hss

Credit

(532)
8

$93,656
$ 3,012

1,011

(1,762)

$17,020

The folIowing table presents the amount of net actuarial gains / losses, transition obligations I assets
and prior period service costs in regulatory assets not yet recognized as a component of net periodic
benefit cost. It also shows the amounts expected to be recognized in the subsequent year. The foIIowing
table presents those items for the employee pension plan and other benefits pIan at December 31, 2011,
and the subsequent twelvemonth period (in thousands):
PensIon Benefits
Subscquent
3011
Period

Net actuarial loss.. .............. $91,144 $7,799
Prior service cost (benefit) ......... 2,512 532
Total..
$93,656 $8,331
-

.......................

OPEB

SEW
Subsequent
2011
Rdod

$3,051

$305

(39)
$3,012

(8)
$297
-

Subscquent
Period

2011

$22,637 $ 1,871
(5,617) (1,011)
$17,020
$
860
- -

The measurement date used to determine the pension and other postretirement benefits is
December 31. The assumptions used to determine the benefit obligation and the periodic costs arc as
follows:
Weighfed-averageassumptiom used io determine the benefi obligation as of December 31:
Pension Benefits

2011
-

........................................
4.70%
..........................3.50%

Discount ratc
Rate of compensation increase..
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OPEB

2OlQ

-

2011

-

2010
-

5.50%
4.50%

4.90%

5.50%
4.50%

3.50%
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Weighted-averageassumptions used to determine the net benefit cost (income) as of Junuaty I :
Pension Benefits
2011
2010
2009

OPEB

2010
2009
- - - - -

2011

Discount rate ............................... 5.550% 6.00% 6.30% 5.50% 6.00% 6.30%
Expected return on plan assets ................... 8.00% 8.00% 8.50% 7.00% 7.00% 7.45%
Rate of compensation increase ................... 4.50% 4.50% 450% 4.50% 4.50% 4.50%

T h e expected long-term rate of return assumption was based on historical return and adjusted to
estimate the potential range of returns for the current asset allocation.
The assumed 2011 cost trend rate used to measure the expected cost of healthcare benefits and
benefit obligation is 8.0%. Each trend rate decreases 0.50% through 2018 to an ultimate rate of 5.0% in
2018 and subsequent years.

The healthcare cost trend rate affects projected benefit obligations. A 1% change in assumed
healthcare cost growth rates would have the following effects (in thousands):
1%Incrcase

.............
............

Effect on total of sentice and interest cost
Effect on post-retirement benefit obligation

1% Decrease

$ 1,258

$

$12,663

$(10,235)

(990)

Fair value measurements of plan assets

See Note 15 for a discussion of fair value measurements.T h e Company believes that it is appropriate
for the pension fund to assume a moderate degree of invesment risk with diversification of fund assets
among different classes (or types) of investments, as appropriate, as a means of reducing risk.Although the
pension fund can and will tolerate some variabiIity in market value and rates of return in order to achieve a
greater long-term rate of return, primary emphasis is placed on preserving the pension fund‘s principal.
Full discretion is delegated to the investment managers to carry out invcstment policy within stated
guidelines. The guidelines and performance of the managers are monitored by the Company‘sInvestment
Committee.
Pension

We utilize fair value in determining the market-related values for the different classes of our pension
plan assets. The market-dated value is determined based on smoothing actual asset returns in excess of
(or less than) expected return on assets over a 5-year period.

The Company’s primary investment goals for pension fund assets arc based around four basic
elements:
Preserve capital,
Maintain a minimum level of return equal to the actuarial interest rate assumption,
3. Maintain a high degree of ffexibility and a low degree of volatility, and
4. Maximize the rate of return while operating within the conhnes of prudence and safety.
1.
2.

The target alIocations for plan assets are 60%-80% equity securities, 20%40% debt securities, and
0%-15% in all other typcs of invesments.
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at

The following fair value hierarchy table presents information about the pension fund assets measured
fair value as of December 31,2011 (in thousands):
Fair %he Measurements as of D e c e r n k 31,2011
Quoted Pdces
in Active
SIgnificant
Markets for
Other
Signjfim-ant
IdentIaaI
ObservabIc Unobservable
Percentage
Assets
Inputs
Loputs
of Plan
@vel 1)
me!2)
(lmel3)
Total:
Assets

~

............

Short term investments..
Equity securities
U.S. equity .....................
International equity. ..............
Fixed income
Common colIective trust
US. corporate debt.
US.government debt
Other types of investments
Equity longlshort hedge funds .......

~~

$

$ 1,787

-

-

57,228

...........
..............
.............

19,151

-

-

22,904

-

-

11,692

794

I

$

1,787

40.6%
13.6%

22,904
11,692
794

16.3%
8.3%
0.6%
19.4%
-

27,419

27,419

$36,383

$27,419

$140,975

- -

1.2%

57,228
19,151

-

I

$77,173

S

100.0%
-

Fair VaIue Measurements as of December 31,2010
Quoted Prices
in Active

Markets for
IdentlcaI
Assets
five1 1)

Short term investments. .............
Equity securities
U.S. equity.
International equity.
Fixed income
Common collective trust
Other types of investments
Equity longlshort hedge funds

....................
..............
...........
.......

$

-

47,797
15,876

I

$63,673
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Significant

0th

ObserPabIe
Inputs
&vel

2)

$ 1,387

I

32,955

Signifimnt

Unobservable
Inputs
(LweI3)

$

I

-

I

-

22,338

$34,342

$22,338

Percentage
of Plan
Total

S 1,387

Assets

1.1%

47,797
15,876

39.7%
13.2%

32,955

27.4%

22,333
$120,353

18.6%
100.0%
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Fair Value Measurements Using Significant Unobservable Inputs (Level 3)

- December 31,
2010

2011
Equity longkhort
hedge funds

Q u h y lonjgshort
hedge funds

$22,338

$23,515

$27,419

-

................
.
.......
...............................
S~es..........,........................
Settlements ..............................
Transfers into and (out of) Level 3 .............
Ending Balance, December 31,. ...............
3eginning Balance, January 1,
Actual return on plan assets:
Relating to assets stiU held at the reporting date
Refating to assets sold during the period
Purchases

$22,338

Permissible Investments

Listed below are the investment vehicIes specificdy permitted
Perm hibte Investmem%
Equlty Oriented

Common Stocks

0

Preferred Stocks
Convertible Preferred Stocks
Convertible Bonds
Covered Options
Hedged Equity Funds of Funds
protection

Fixed Income Oriented and Red Estate

3onds
GIG, BIG
a Corporate Bonds (minimum quality rating
of Baa or B3B)
e Cash-Equivalent Securities (e.g., U.S.
T-Bik, Commercial Paper, etc.)
e Certificates of Deposit in institutions with
FDrmLrC
0 Money Market Funds I Bank STIF Funds
0 Real Estate - Publicly Traded

The above assets can be held in cornrnhgIed (mutual) funds as well as privately managed separate
accounts.
Those investments prohibited by the Investment Committee without prior approval are:
Prohibited Investmerrts Requiting Pre-approval
Privately Placed Securities
Commodities Futures
Securities of Empire District
Derivatives

0
0

Warrants
Shortsales
Index Options

OPEB
The Company's primary investment gods for the component of the OPEB fund used to pay current
benefits are liquidity and safety. The primary investment goals for the component of the OPEB fund used
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accumulate funds to provide for payment of benefits after the retirement of plan participants are
preservation of the fund with a reasonable rate of return. The target allocations for pIan assets are 0% 10% cash and cash equivalents, 40% - 60% fixed income securities and 40% - 60% in equity. The
foIlowing fair vdue hierarchy tabIe presents information about the OPEB fund assets measured at fair
value as of December 31, 2011:
to

Fair Value Measurements as of December 31,2011
Quoted Prices
in Active

............
..............
...............
....................
........
....................
...............
.............

Cash and cash equivalents
Fixed income
U.S. government debt
U.S. corporate debt
Foreign debt.
Mutual funds - fixed income
Equity securities
US, equity..
International equity
Mutual funds - equity
Accrued interest gL dividends

..........

SIgnIficant

Markets for
Identical

Other
Obsemblc

Assets

(Level I)

Inputs
@vel 2)

$ 1,536

$

-

1,839
17,232

1,460

-

2,107
21,080

1,784
11,075

20,531

37,582

Significant
Unobsemblc
Inputs
(Level 3)

$-

P~rCMltage
of PIan

TOtaI

E 1,536

-

1,839
17,232

-

-

-

2.6%
3.1%
29.5%

1,460
2,107

2.5%

21,080
1,784
11,075

36.1%
3.1%

58,113
271

7

Assets

$58,384

3.6%

19.0%
0.5%
-

100%
-

Fair YaIlte Measurements as o f December 31,2010
Quoted Prices
in Active
Significant
Markets for
Other
Significant
Ydcntiml
Observable Unabsemble
Percentage
hsets
Inputs
Inputs
o l PIan
(Leuel I)
(Level 2)
m e 1 3)
%tal
Assets

............
..............
...............
....................
........
....................
...............
.............

Cash and cash equivalents
Fixed income
U.S. government debt
US. corporate debt
Foreign debt.
Mutual funds - fixed income
Equity securities
US.equity..
International equity
Mutual funds - equity

Accrued interest & dividends

..........

$ 3,897

-

I

1,496

17,592
1,274
12,556
36,815

$

4,091
15,156
420

-

19,667

$-

S 3,897

7.0%

4,091
15,156

7.2%
26.7%

-

I

c

-

-

.

420

0.7%

1,496

2.6%

17,592
1,274

31.0%

12,556
56,482
248
S56,730

2.2%
22.1%

0.5%
-

100%

=

T h e Company's guideline in the management of this fund is to endorse a long-term approach, but not
expose the fund to levels of volatility that might adverseIy affect the value of the assets. Full discretion is
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delegated to the investment managers to carry out investment poky within stated guidelines. T h e
guidelines and performance of the managers are monitored by the Company's Investment Committee.
Permissible Investments

Listed beIow are the investment vehicles specifically permitted:
Permissible Investments

.

EgW
-

Fixed Income

Common Stocks
Preferred Stocks

0

0
0

Cash-Equivalent Securities with a maturity
of one-year or less

Bonds
Money Market Funds / Bank STIF Funds
Certificates of Deposit in hstitutions With
FDIC protection
Corporate Bonds (minimum quality rating
of A)

The above assets can be held in comingfed (mutual) funds as well as privately managed separate
accounts.
Listed bdow are those investments prohibited by the Investment Committee:
Prohibited Investmen&
Privately Placed Securities

Commodities Fuhlres
Securities of Empire District
Derivatives
a Instrumentalities in violation of the
Prohibited Transactions Standards of
ERISA
0

9,

Margin Bansactions
Short Sales
e Index Options
Red Estate and Real Property
0 Restricted Stock
0

ZncomeTaxes

Income tax expense components for the years ended December 31 are as follows (in thousands):
2011

Current income taxes:
Federal

2010

2009

................................
$ (8,604) S 7,713 $ 3,987
.................................. (2,120) 1,057 572
TO...................................
(10,724) 8,770
4,559
Deferred income taxes:
Federal ................................ 39,096
17,942 13,854
State ..................................
4,349 1,973
6,297 TOTAL.. ................................
45,393
22,291
15,827
Investment tax credit amortization. ..............
(3711
(528)
(504)
$30,533
$19,882
TOTAL lNCOME TAX EXPENSE ............. $ 34,298 =
State
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Deferred Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and IiabiIities are reflected on our consolidated balance sheet as follows (in
thousands):
December 31,
Deferred Income Tares

2010

2011

..................... $ 6,688
................. 263,933
................. $257,245

Current deferred tax assets, net(').
Non-current deferred tax liabilities, net
NET DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

212,003

$

$212,003

(1) Current deferred tax assets are included in prepaid expenses and other on the face of the
balance sheet.
Brnporary daerences related to deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are summarized as
folIows ,(in thousands):
December 31,
Temporary Differences

2011

Deferred tax assets:
Netoperatingloss..
$ 6,688
Disallowed plant costs ............................
1,097
261
Alternative minimum tax
Gains on hedging transactions
1,454
Plant d a t e d basis differences.
21,044
Regulated liabilities related to income taxa
13,318
Pensions and other post-rctirement benefits.
Carry forward of income tax credit
16,304
Income received - deferrcd .......................
598
Other
32
Total deferred tax assets
$ 60,796
Deferred tax liabilities:
Depreciation, amortization and other plant related
differences
$253,743
Regulated assets reIated to income
40,555
Loss on reacquired debt.
4,288
Pensions and other post-retirement benefits.
673
Deferred ice storm expenses.
1,413
Deferred fuel costs
2,662
Amortization of intangibles ........................
5,929
Other
8,778
?btaI deferred tax liabilities
318,041
NET DEFERRED TAX LM3EITIE-S
$257,245

.............................
..........................
......................
......................
............
............
...................
........................................
............................

...................................
...................
..........................
............
.......................
..............................
........................................
..........................
.................
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2010

S

-

1,127

1,518
21,105
13,702

1,588
12,596

10,044
2,262
$ 63,942

$216,685
41,107
3,996
I

2,957
1,965
4,850
4,355

275,945

$212,003
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The Company generated approximately $25.1 million of tax net operating losses during 2011, mainly
due to bonus depreciation. These losses may be carried back two years and are also available to offset
future taxable income until 2031.
Effective Income Tax Rates

The difference between income taxes and amounts calculated by applying the federal legal rate to
income tax expense for continuing operations were as follows:
Effective Income Tax Rates

.....................................

2011
2010
2009
-

Federal statutory income tax ratc
35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
Increase in income tax rate resulting from:
State income tax (net of federal benefit) ............................... 3.1
3.1
3.1
Investment tax credit amortization
(0.4) (0.7) (0.8)
Effect of ratemaking on property related differences
0.2 (0.8) (3.6)
Effect of Medicare part D changes
- 2.7
Other .......................................................0.5 (0.1) (1.2)
Effective iacome tax r a t e . .
38.4% 39.2% 32.5%
= = =

..................................
.....................
..................................
.........................................

Unrecognized Tax B e n ~ t s

..................
...........................

Unrecognized tax benefits - January I , .
The gross amounts of increases in unrecognized tax benefits
taken during prior periods
The gross amounts of decreases in unrecognized tax benefits
taken during the period relating to positions accepted by taxing
authorities

2011

2010

2009

$ 359,000

$ 906,000

$ 2,176,000

.......................................
....................

Reductions to unrecognized tax benefits as a result of a lapse of
the applicable statute of limitations
(359,000) (547,000) (1,270,000)
Unrecognized tax benefits - December 31, ................ $
- $ 359,000 $ 906,000

The Company does not have any unrecognized tax benefits as of December 31,2011. The Company
recognized intercst or penalties of $0.0 million, $0.1 million and $(O.O) rniIIion during 2011,2010 and 2009,
respectively, related to unrecognized tax benefits in other expenses and on the balance sheet. The
Company does not expect any signscant changes to our unrecognized tax benefits over the next twelve
months.
A December 2009 award born an arbhation pane1 ordered KCP&L to renegotiate with the IRS a
previous $125milIion advanced coal investment tax credit granted to our Man 2 plant. The R S executed a
revised memorandum of understanding (MOU)on September 7, 2010, which granted 11s our share,
$17.7 million, of advanced cod investment tax credits in accordance with the arbitration panel’s order. We
utilized Iess than $0.2 million of these credits when preparing our 2010 tax return as utilization of the
credits was limited by alternative minimum tax rules. We expect to use the remaining credits over the 2012
and 2013 tax years. The tax credit will have no si-dcant income statement impact as the credits will flow
to our customers as we amortize the tax credits over the life of the plant.

We received a S26.6 million payment received from the SWPA during 2010 which was deferred and
treated as a noncurrent liability for book purposes. We increased our current tax liability by $10.0 million
during 2010 in recognition that thc $26.6 million payment may be considered taxable income in 2010. An
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agreement was reached with the IRS in 2011 that dlowcd us to defer recognition for tax purposes of
approximately $26.1 d o n utilizing “lie-kind exchange” ruIes within the Code. Accordingly, we reduced
our current tax liability based on the agreement and will recognizc the $26.1 million for tax purposes over
more than 50 years.
On March 23, 2010, the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act was enacted. This legislation
included a provision that reduced the dedudbiity, for income tax purposes, of retiree healthcare costs to
the extent an employer receives federal subsidies. Companies receive the subsidy when they provide retiree
prescription benefits at least equivalent to Medicare Part D coverage in their postretirement healthcare
pIan. Although the dimination of this tax benefit does not take effect until 2013, this change required us to
recognize the full accounting impact in our financial statements in the period in which the legislation was
enacted. As a result, in the first quarter of 2010, we recorded a onetime non-cash charge of approximately
$2.1 million to provision for income taxes to reflect the impact of this change. Our 2010 effective tax rate
increased as noted in the statutory rate reconciliation above based on the change.

10, Commonly Owned Facilities

We own a 12% undivided interest in the cod-fired Units No. 1 and No. 2 at the Iatan Generating
Station located ncar Weston, Missouri, 35 miles northwest of Kansas City, Missouri, as well as a 3%
interest in the site and a 12% interest in certain common facilities. At December 31, 2011 and 2010, our
property, plant and cquipment accounts included the amounts in the folIowing chart (in millions):
Iatan
-

......................
..............................
......................................

Cost of ownership in plant in service
Accumulated Depreciation
Expenditures(’)

20ll
2010
-

$362.6 S353.9
$ 39.6 $ 34.1
$ 31.3

$ 18.2

(1) Operating, maintenance, and fuel expenditures excIuding depreciation expense.

We are entitled to 12%of each unit’s available capacity and are obligated to pay for that percentage of
the operating costs of the units. KCP&L and KCP&L Greater Missouri Operations Co.own 70% and 18%
respectiveIy, of Unit I, and 54% and 18%, respectively, of Unit 2. KCP&L operates the units for the joint
owners, latan 2 met its in-service criteria on August 26, 2010, and entered commercia1 opcration on
December 31, 2010. During 2010 we added $212.2 million to plant in service associated with Iatan 2 and
placed in service approximately $2.9 milIion of common property expenditures associated with this
construction project.
We and Westar Generating, Inc, (‘WGI’’), a subsidiary of Westar Energy, Inc., share joint ownership
of a 500-megawatt combined cycle unit at the State Line Power Plant (the “State Line Combined Cyde
Unit”).We are responsible for thc operation and maintenance of the State Line Combined CycIe Unit, and
are entitled to 60% of the available capacity and arc responsible for approximately 60% of its costs. At
Deccmbcr 31, 2011 and 2010, OUT property, plant and equipment accounts include the amounts in the
following chart (in rniIlions):
State Lfne Combined Cyde Unft

2011
2010

......................
..............................
......................................

Cost of ownership in pIant in service
Accumulated Depreciation
Expenditures(’)

$162.1 $164.1
$ 49.4 S 44.9
$ 57.0

$ 59.6

(1) Operating, maintenance, and fuel expenditures excluding depreciation expense.
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W e own a 7.52%undivided interest in the cod-firedPlum Point Energy Station located near Osceola,
Arkansas. We are entitled to 7.52%of the station's capacity, and are obligated to pay for that percentage
of the station's operating costs. The Plum Point Energy Station met its in-sewice criteria on August 13,
2010 and entered commercial operation on September I, 2010. At December 31, 2011 and 2010, our
property, plant and equipment accounts induded the amounts in the folIowing chart (in millions):
Plum Point Energy Station

......................
..............................

Cost of ownership in plant in service
Accumulated Depreciation
Expenditures(') ......................................

2011
2010
-

$110.1
$ 2.7
$ 8.5

$110.2
$ 0.7
$ 3.4

(1) Operating, maintenance and fuel expenditures excluding depreciation expense.
All of the dollar amounts listed above represent our ownership share of costs,
11. Commitments and Contingencies

We are a party to .various claims and Iegal proceedings arising out of the normal course of our
business. Management regularly analyzes this information, and has provided accmaIs for any liabiiities, in
amrdance with the guidelines presented in the ASC on accounting for contingencies. In the opinion of
management,it is not probable, given the company's defenses, that the ultimate outcome of these claims
and lawsuits, individually or in the aggregate, will have a materid adverse effect upon our financial
condition, or results of operations or cash flows.
On May 22,2009, a suit was filed in the Circuit Court of Platte County Missouri by several individuals
and Class Representatives alleging damages to land, structures, equipment and devastation of crops due to
inappropriate management of the fevee system around the Man Generating Station, of which we are a
12% owner. This matter was set for bid beginning November 7,2011,but has now been rescheduled for
March 14,2012. We are unable to predict the outcome of the law suit or estimate the amount of damages,
if any.
A lawsuit has been filed in Jasper County Circuit Court against us by three of our residential
customers, purporting to act on behalf of all Empire customers. These customers are seeking a refund of
certain amounts paid for semice provided by Ernpire between January 1,2007, and December 13,2007. We
will Vigorously defend against the claims made against us by these three residential customers. At all times,
we charged the three p I a i n a , and all of our customers, the rates approved by and on 6le with the ME'SC.

T h e rates charged by us during the time period at issue were approved by the MPSC in our 2006 rate
case. T h e orders ofthe MFSC in that case were appealed by the OPC, acting on behalf of the public, and
certain industrial customers. The Missouri Court of Appeals a r m e d all decisions entered by the MPSC in
OUT 2006 rate case.
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Coal, Natural Gas and Ransportation Contracts
Firm pbysicaI gas

Coal and ma1
transportatloti
contracts
(In millions)

and transportation
contracts

January 1,2012 through December 31,2012. . . . . . .
January 1,2013 through December 31,2014. . . . . . .
January 1,2015 through December 31,2016. . . . . . .
January 1,2017 and beyond. .

.. ..

. . -.. . . . .

330.9
435
24.5

17.8

s35.3
46.7
31.3

-

In addition to the above, we have an agreement with Southern Star Central Pipeline, Lac. to purchase
one million Dths of firm gas storage service capacity for our electric business for a period of five years,
which began in April 2011. Thc reservation charge for this storage capacity is approximately $1.1 million
mually.
We have entered into long arid short-term agreements to purchase coal and natural gas for our energy
supply and natural gas operations. Under these contracts, the natural gas supplies are divided into firm
physical commitments and derivatives that are used to hedge future purchases. In the event that this gas
cannot be used at our pIants, the gas would be liquidated at market price. The 6rm physical gas and
transportation commitments are detailed in the tabIe above.
We have coal supply agreements and transportation contracts in place to provide for the delivery of
cod to the plants. Thesc contracts are written with Form Majeure clauses that enable us to reduce
tonnages or cease shipments under certain circumstances or events. These include mechanical or electrical
maintenance items, acts of God, war or insurrection, strikes, weather and other disruptkg events. This
reduces the risk we have for not takhg the minimum requirements of fuel under the contracts. We entered
into a contract in the second quarter of 2010 to traosport coal beginning June 30,2010, wbich replaced a
contract that expired June 29,2010. The contract term is for six and one-half years and includes minimum
payments totaling approximately $91.9 million. The minimum rcquirements for our coal and coal
transportation contracts are detailed in the table above.
Purchased Power

We currently supplement our on-system gencrating capacity with purchases of aipacity and energy
from other entities in order to meet the demands of our customers and the capacity margins applicable to
us under current pooling agreements and NationaI Electric Reliability Council (NERC)rules.
We have a long term (30 year) agreement for the purchase of capacity from the Plum Point Energy
Station, a 665-megawatt, coal-fired generating facility near Osceola, Arkansas. We began receiving
purchased power on September 1, 2010. We have the option to purchase an undivided ownership interest
in the 50 megawatts covered by the purchased power agreement in 2015. Commitments under this contract
total approximately S35.0 milIion through August 30, 2015.

We have a 20-year purchased power agreement, which began on December 15, 2008, with Cloud
County Windfarm, LLC, owned by EDP Renewables North America LLC (formerly Horizon Wind
Encrgy}, Houston, Texas to purchase the energy generated at the approximately 105-megawatt Phase 1
Meridian Way Wind Farm located in Cloud County, Kansas. We do not own any portion of the windfarm.
Annual payments are contingent upon output of the facility and can range from zero to a maximum of
approximately $14.6 million based on a 20-year average cost.
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We also have a 20-year contract, which began on December 15,2005, with Elk River Wmdfarm, LLC,
owned by TBERDROLA "EWA3LES, hc.,
to purchase the energy generated at the 150-megawatt Elk
River Windfarm located in Butter County, b a s . We do not own any portion of the windfarm. Annual
payments are contingent upon output of the facility and can range fiom zero to a maximum of
approximately $16.9 million based on a 20-year average cost.

Fayments for these agreements are recorded as purchased power expenses, and, because of the
contingent nature of these payments, are not included in the operating lease obligations shown beIow.

New Construction

We own a 50 megawatt, 7.52%, undivided interest in the Plum Point Energy Station described above.
Our share of the Plum Point initial construction costs through December 31,2011 was $86.8 million plus
A F m C of $16.5 million. The Plum Point Energy Station entered commercial operation on September 1,
2010.

We dso own an undivided ownership interest in the cod-fired Iatan 2 generating facility operated by
Kansas City Power & Light Company (KCP&L) and located at the site of the existing Iatan Generating
Station (Iatan 1) near Weston, Missouri. We own 12%, or approximately 102 megawatts, of the
850-megawatt unit, which entered commercial operation on December 31,2010. Our share of the initial
construction costs through December 31, 2011 was $233.3 d i o n plus AFUDC of $19.1 million.
The recovery of these construction costs has been sought through rate cases tiled with the regulators
in each of our jurisdictions. These construction costs, as well as other construction costs, are subject to
prudency reviews by OUT regulators. T h e prudency of the construction costs for Man 1, Iatan 2 and Plum
Point was not addressed in our most recent Missouri rate case, but may be considered in a hture rate
proceeding. See Rate Matters in Note 3 for the details of each case.
Leases

We have purchased power agreements with Cloud County Windfarm, U C and Elk River
Windfam, LLG which are considered operating Ieases for GAAP purposes. Details of these agreements
are disclosed in the Purchased Power section of this note.
We aIso currcntIy have short-term operating leases for two unit trains to meet coal delivery demands,
for garage and office facilities for our electric segment arid for one office facility related to our gas
segment. In addition, we have capital leases for certain office equipment and 108 raiIcars to provide coal
delivery for our ownership and purchased power agreement shares of the Plum Point generating facility.
The gross amount of assets recorded under capita1 Ieases total $5.5 million at December 31, 2011.
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Our lease obligations over the next five years are as €oIIows (in thousands):
Capita1

Leases

Capital Leases

.............................................
.............................................
.............................................

2012
S 618
2013 ............................................. 595
20r4
555
20i5
553
2016 ............................................. 549
Thereafter ........................................ 4,646
Total minimum payments
7,514
Less amount representing interest
2,483
Present value of net minimum lease payments
$5,031

.............................
.......................
..............

Operating
Leases

$ 939

758
720
720

720
1,813
5,670

-$5,670

Expenses incurred rdated to operating leases were $1.0 million, $0.8 million and 51.4 miIIion for 2011,
2010, and 2009, respectively, excluding paymcnts for wind generated purchased power agreements. Thc
accumulated amount of amortization for our capital leases was $1.0 million and $0.6 million at
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Environmental Matters

We are subject to various federa1, state, and local laws and regulations with respect to air and watcr
quality and with respect to hazardous and toxic materials and hazardous and other wastes, including their
identification, transportation, disposal, record-keeping and reporting, as well as remediation of
contaminated sites and other environmental matters. We believe that our operations are in material
compliance with present environmental laws and regulations. Environmcntal requirements have changed
frequently and become more stringent over time. We expect this trend to continue. WhiIc we are not in a
position to accurately estimate compliance costs for any new requirements, we expect any such costs to be
materid, although recoverabte in rates.
Electric Segment
Air

T h e Federal Clean Air Act (CAA)and comparable state Iaws regulate air emissions from stationary
sources such as eIectric power plants through permitting andlor emission control and related requircments.
These requirements include maximum emission limits on our facilities for s u h r dioxidc (SO2), particulate
matter, and nitrogen oxides (NOx). In thc future they are also likely to include Iirnits on emissions of
mercury, other hazardous pollutants (HAPS) and so-called greeahouse gases (GHG)such as carbon
dioxide (CO,)and methane.
Permits

Under the CAA wc have obtained, and renewed a5 necessary, site opcrating permits, which are valid
for five years, for each of our plants.
Cornplian ce Plan

In order to cornpry with forthcoming environmentd regulations, Empire is taking actions to
implement its compliance plan and strategy (compliance Plan). Whiic the Cross State Air Pollution RuIc
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(CSAPR)that was set to take effect on January 1,2012 was stayed at the last minute in late December
2011 by the Dishit3 of Columbia Circuit Court of Appeals, the Mercury and Air Todcs Standards (MATS)
Rules were signed by the Environmental Protection Agency @PA) Administrator on December 16,2011.
MATS is set to become cffective and wilI require compliance withim a three year timehame (with flexibility
for extensions for reliability reasons). This Compliance Plan largely follows the preferred plan presented in
our most recent Integrated Resource Plan. The Compliance Plan calls for the installation of a scrubber,
fabric a e r , and powder activated carbon injection system at OUT Asbury plant by eady 2015 at a cost
ranging from $112 million to $130 million. The addition of this air quality control equipment will require
the retirement of Asbury Unit 2, an 18 megawatt steam turbine that is currentIy used for peaking purposes.
The CompliancePlan also calIs for the transition of our Riverton Units 7 and 8 from operation on coal to
full operation on natural gas after the summer of 2013. Riverton Units 7 and 8, dong with Riverton Unit 9,
a s m d combustion turbine that requires steam from Unit 7 for start-up, will be retired upon the
conversion of Riverton Unit 12, a recentIy instaIled simple cycle combustion turbine, to a combined cycle
unit. This conversion is currently schedded €or the 2016 timehme.
SO, Emissions

The CAA regulates the amount of SO2 an affected unit can emit. Currently SO2 emissions are
regulated by the lWe IV Acid Rain Program and the Clean Air Interstate Rule (m).
On January 1,
2012,CAIR was to have been replaced by the Crossstate Air Poltution Rule (CSAPR- formerly the Clean
Air Transport Rule). But, on December 30,2011 the District of Columbia Circuit Court of Appeals issued
a stay of the CSAPR. CADX will remain in effect whiIe the case is reviewed. The Title IV Acid Rain
Program wilI still remain in effect.
The Mercury Air Toxjcs Standards (MATS), discussed below, was signed on December 16,2011, and
Wiu affect SO2 emission rates at our facilities. In addition, the compliance date for the revised SO2
National Ambient Air Quality Standards (NAAQS) is August of 2017; this will also affect SO2 emissions
~ I our
U facilities. The SOz NAAQS is discussed in more detail below.
Title IV Acid Rain Program:
Under the Title IV Acid Rain Program, each existing affected unit has been allocated a specific
number of emission allowances by the U.S. EnvironmentaI Protection Agency (EPA).Each allowance
entitles the holder to emit one ton of SOz. Covered utilities, such as Empire, must have emission
allowances equal to the number of tons of SO2emitted during a given year by each of their affected units.
Allowances in excess of the annual emissions are banked for future use. In 2010, our SO2 emissions
exceeded the annual allocations. This deficit was covered by our banked allowances. When our mtlc IV
Acid Rain Program SOz allowance bank is exhausted, currently estimated to be late 2012, we will necd to
purchase additional SO2alIowanccs, blend more low sulfur coal at our facilities or transition our coal-fired
Riverton Units 7 and 8 to natural gas or a combination of the above. Long-term compliance with this
program will be met by the CompIiance Plan detailed above along with possible procurement of additional
SO, allowances. We expect the cost of compliance to be fully recoverable in our rates.

am:
In 2005, the EPA promulgated CAIR under the CAA. CAIR generally calls for fossil-fueIed power
plants greater than 25 megawatts to reduce emission leveIs of SO2andlor NOx in 25 eastern states and the
District of Cotumbia, including Missouri, where our Asbury, Energy Center, State Line and Iatan Units
No. 1 and No.2 are located. Kansas was not incIuded in CAIR and our Riverton Plant was not affected.
Arkansas,where our PIum Point Plant is Iocated, was included for ozone season NOx but not for SOz.
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In 2008, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the District of CoIumbia vacated CAIR and remanded it back
EPA for further consideration, but also stayed its vacatur. As a result, CAlR became effective for NOx
on January 1, 2009 and for SO2 on January 1, 2010 and required covered states to develop State
ImpIementation Plans (SIPS)to comply with speciEic SO, state-wide m u d budgets.
to

SO2allowance allocations under the Title IV Acid Rain Program are used for compliance in the C A R
SO2 Program. Beginning in 2010, SOz allowances were utiIized at a 2:l ratio for our Missouri units. As a
result, based on current SO, allowance usage projections,we expected to have s ~ c i e nallowances
t
to take
us into the latter part of 2012.

In order to meet CAIR requirements for SO2 and NOx emissions (NOx is discussed below in more
detail) and as a requirement for the ak permit for Iatan 2, a Selective Catalytic Reduction qstern {SCR), a
FGD scrubber system and baghouse were installed at our jointly-owned Iatan 1 plant and a SCR was
installed at our Asbury plant in 2008. Our jointly-owned Man 2 and PIum Point plants were originally
constructed with the above technology.
CSAPR- formerly the Clean Air Transport Rule:

On July 6, 2010, the EPA pubfshed a proposed CAD? repIacement ruIe entided the Clean Air
Transport Rule (CATR). As proposed and supplemented, the CATR included Missouri and Kansas under
both the annual and ozone season for NOx as well as the SO2 program white Arkansas remained in the
ozone season NOx program only. The hal CATR was relcascd on Jury 7, 2011 under the name of the
CSAPR, and was set to become effective January I, 2012. However, as mentioned above, the District of
Columbia Circuit Court of Appeals stayed the d e and as of January 1,2012, the CAIR will be in effect
while the court reviews the case. When it was published, the h a l GAPR required a 73% reduction in SO2
from 2005 levels by 2014. Tbe SO2 allowances allocated under the EPK5 Title IV Acid Rain Program
cannot be used €or compliance with CSAPR but would continue to be used for compliance with the Title
IV Acid Rain Program. Therefore, new SO2allowances would be allocated under CSAPR and retired at
one alIowance per ton of SOzemissions emitted. We would receive fewer SO2allowances than we currently
emit. Long-term compliance with this Rule )vi11 be met by the Compliance PIan detailed above along with
possible procurement of additional SO2dlowances. A number of states, including Kansas, electric utilities
and industrial organizations commenced titigation with the District of Coiumbia Court of Appcals
challenging the CSAPR being stayed, The court has ordered that the parties submit briefs for an April
2012 hearing. We expect compliance costs to be recoverabIe in our rates.
Mercury Air lbxics Standard

Proposed by the EPA on March 16,2011 and signed on December 16,2011, the MATS regulation
does not include allowance mechanisms, but would establish alternative standards for certain poIlutants,
including SO, (as a surrogate for hydrogen chloride (HCI)),which must be met to show compliance with
hazardous air pollutant limits (see additional discussion in the MATS section below}.
SO2 National Ambient Air Quality Standard (NAAQS):

In June 2010, the EPA finalized a new I-hour SOz NAAQS which,for areas with no SO2monitor, will
require modeling to determine attainment and non-attainment areas within each state. This modeling of
emission sources is to be completed by June 2013 with compliance with the SO2 NAAQS required by
August 2017. Draft guidance for 1-hour SO2NAAQS has been published by the EPA to assist states as they
prepare their SIP submissions.The EPA is also planning a rulemaking to address some of the 1-hour SO2
NAAQS implementation program elements. It is likeIy coal-firedgenerating units will need scrubbers to be
capable of mecting the new 1-hour SO2 NAAQS. In addition, units WitI be required to include SO2
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emissions l i i t s in their Title V permits or execute consent decrees to assure attainment and future
compliance.
NOx Emissians

The W regulates the amount of NOx an af€ectedunit can emit. As currently operated, each of our
affected units is in compliance with the applicabte NOx limits. Currently, revised NOx emissions are
limited by the CAIR (subject to the outcome of the CSAPR proceedings) and by ozone NAAQS rules
(discussed below) which were established in 1997 and in 2008.
CAIR:

In 2005, the EPA promulgated CADI under the W. CAlR generally calls for fossil-fueled power
plants greater than 25 megawatts to reduce emission Ievels of NOx in 28 states, including Missouri, where
our Asbury, Energy Center, State Line and Iatan Units No. 1 and No. 2 are located and Arkansas where
the Plum Point Energy Station is Iocated. Kansas was not included in CAITi and our Riverton Plant was
not affected.
The CAIR required covered states to deveIop SIPs to comply with specific annud NOx state-wide
allowance allocation budgets. Based on existing SIPS,we had excess NOx aIIowances during 2010 which
were banked for future use and will be st&cient for compliance at least through the end of 2012.The
CAIR NOx program also was to have been replaced by the CSAPR program January 1,2012 but because
of the court stay will remain in effect while the case is reviewed.
CSAPR
As published, the h a 1 rule requires a 54% reduction in NOx horn 2005 levels by 2014. The NOx
annual and ozone scason allowances that were docated and banked under CAIR cannot be used for
compliance under CSAPR.New alIowances will be issued under CSAPR.
Ib address NOx annual and NOx ozone season compliance, our options range from increasing the
level of controIwith the Asbury SCR,the transition of our Riverton PIant coal-ked units to natural gas, or
purchasing emission allowances. We expect the cost of comptiance to be fully recoverable in our rates.
Ozone NAAQS
Ozone, also called ground level smog, is formed by the mixing of NOx and Volatile Organic
Compounds (VOCS) in the presence of sunlight. On January 6, 2010, the EPA proposed to lower the
primary NAAQS for ozone designed to protect pubIic health to a range between 60 and 70 ppb and to set a
separate secondary NAAQS for ozone designed to protect sensitive vegetation and ecosystems.

On Septembcr 2,2011,President Obama ordered the EPA to withdraw proposed air quality standards
loweringthe 2008 ozone standard pending the CAA 2013 scheduled reconsideration of the ozone NAAQS
(the normal 5 year reconsideration period). States will move forward with area designations based on the
2008 75 ppb standard using 2008-2010 quality assured monitoring data. Our sentice territory will be
designated as attainment, meaning it will be in compliance with the standard. In the interim, the 1997
ozone N M Q S will remain in effect.

Mercury Air Toxics Standard (MATS)

In 2005, the EPA issued the Clean Air Mercury Rule (CAMR) under the CAA. It set limits on
mercury emissions by power plants and created a markct-based cap and trade system expected to reduce
nationwide mercury emissions in two phases. New mercury emission limits €or Phase 1 were to go into
effect January 1, 2010. On February 8, 2008, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia
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vacated CAMR. This dccision was appeded to the US. Supreme Court which denied the appeal on
February 23,2009.

The EPA issucd an Information Collection Request (ICR)for determining the National Emission
Standards for Hazardous Air PolIutants (NESHAP), incIuding mercury, for ma1 and oil-fired electric
steam generating units on December 24,2009. This ICR included our Iatan, Asbury and Riverton pIants.
AII ICRs were submitted as required. The EPA ZCR was intended for use in developing reguIations under
Section lIZ(r) of the CAA maximum achievable emission standards for the control of the emission of
hazardous air pollutants (HAPS), inchding mercury. The EPA proposed the first ever nationd mercury
and air toxics standards (MATS) in March 2011. Et was signed by EPA Administrator on December 16,
2011 -and establishes numerical emission l i i t s to reduce emissions of heavy metals, including mercury
mg), arsenic, chromium, and nickel, and acid gases, including HCl and hydrogen fluoride (HF). For all
existing and new coal-fired electric utility steam generating units (EGUs), the proposed standard will be
phased in over three years, and alIows states the ability to ghe facilities a fourth year to comply.
The MATS regulation of HAPs in combination with CSAPR is the driving regulation behind our
Compliancc PIan and its implementation schedule. We expect compliance costs to be recoverable in our
rates.
Greenhouse Gases

Our coal and gas plants, vehicles and other facilities, including EDG (our gas segment), emit C02
andlor other Greenhouse Gases (GHGs)which are measured in Carbon Dioxide Equivalents (C02e).

On Septcmbcr 22,2009, the EPA issued the frnal Mandatory Reporting of Greenhouse Gases Rule
under the CAA which requires power generating and certain other facilities that equal or exceed an
emission threshoId of 25,000 metric tons of C02c to report GHGs to the EPA annually commencing in
September 2011. GHG emissions have been reported as required to the EPA in 2011 for EDE and EDG.
On January 11, 2012 EPA released thc greenhouse gas data reported from large facilities and suppliers
across the U.S.economy for the year 2010.
On December 7,2009, responding to a 2007 U.S. Supreme Court decision that determined that GHGs
constitute “air pollutants” under the CAA, the EPA issued its h a l finding that GHGs thrcaten both the
pubIic health and the public welfare. This “endangerment” hnding does not itself trigger any EFA
rcguIations, but is a necessary predicate for the EPA to proceed with regulations to conwof GHGs. On
May 13,2010,thc EFA issued under the CAA its final Prevention of Significant Deterioration and Title V
Greenhouse Gas Tdoring Rule (Tailoring Rulc) to address GHG emissions from stationary sources, which
became effective January 2, 2011. Tbe rule sets thresholds for GHG emissions that determine when
permits will be required under the New Source Review Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD)and
titIe V Operating Permit programs applicable io new and existing power plants and other covered sources.
Under the PSD program, required controls for GHG emissions would be determined based on Best
Available Control Xchnolog (BACT). EPA issued a SApermitting guidance document on
November 11,2OIO. Missouri and Kansas have been delegated GHG permitting authority by EPA. SeveraI
parties have hlcd petitions with the EPA and lawsuits have been filed challenging the EPAs Endangerment
Finding and the ’ItliIoring Rule.
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In addition, on December 23,2010 the EPA entered into an agreement with a number of state and
environmental petitioners to settle litigation pending in the U.S. Court of Appeals for the District of
Columbia Circuit that requires EPA to propose New Source Performance Standards (NSPS)for GHGs for
fossil-fuel fired steam generating units by September 30,2011 and to issue final GHG NSPS standards by
May 26, 2012. The EFA has not to date issued a proposed GEIG emissions rule for stationary sources.
A variety of proposals have been and are likely to continue to be considered by Congress to reduce
GHGs. Proposals are dso being considered in the House and Senate that would delay, limit or eliminate
EPA's authority to regulate GHGs. At this time, it is not possible to predict what legislation, if any, will
ultimately emerge from Congress regarding control of GHGs.

Certain states have taken steps to develop cap and trade programs andlor other regulatory systems
which may be more stringent than federal requirements. For exampte, Kansas is a participating member of
the Midwestern Greenhouse Gas Reduction Accord (MGGRQ), one purpose of which is to deveIop a
market-based cap and trade mechanism to reduce GHG emissions. The MGGRA has announced,
however, that it will not issue a C02e regulatory system pending federal legislative developments. Missouri
is not a participant in the MGGRk
The ultimate cost of any GHG regulations cannot be determined at this time. However, we would
expect the cost of complying with any such regulations to be recoverable in our rates.

Wafer Discharges
We operate under the Kansas and Missouri Water Pollution Plans that were implemented in response
Clean Water Act (CWA). Our pIants are in material compliance with applicable regulations
and have received necessary discharge permits.
to the Federal

The Riverton Units 7 and 8 and Iahn Unit 1, which utilize once-through cooling water, were affected
by regulations for Cooling Water Intake Structures issued by the EPA under the CWA Section 316@)
Phase 11. The regulations became find on February 16, 2004. In accordance with these regulations, we
submittedsamphg and summary reports to the Kansas Department of Health and Environment (KDHE)
which indicate that the effect of the cooling water intake structure on Empire Lake's aquatic life is
insignificant. KCP&'l, who operates Iatan Unit 1, submitted the appropriate sampling and summary
reports to the Missouri Department of Natural Resources (MDNR). In 2007 the United States Court of
Appeals for the Second Circuit remanded key sections of these CWA reguIations to the EPA. As a result,
the EPA suspended the regulations and revised and signed a prc-publication proposed regdation on
March 28,2011 and is obIigated to finalize the rule by July 27,2012.
We will not know the full impact of these rules until they are finalized. I€ adopted in their present

form, we expect reguIations of Cooling Water Intake Structures issued by the EPA under the CWA
Section 316@) to have an impact at Riverton ranging from minor improvements to the cooling water
intake structure to retirement of units 7 and 8. Impacts at Iatan 1 could range from flow velodty reductions
or traveling screen modifications for fish handling to installation of a closed qcIe cooling towcr retrofit.
Our new Tatan Unit 2 and Plum Point Unit 1 are covered by the proposed regulation but were constructed
with cooling towers, the proposed Best 2chnoIogy Available. We cxpect them to be unaffected or
minimally impacted by the final d e .
Surface Impoutidmmts

Wc own and maintain coal ash impoundments located at our Riverton and Asbury Power Plants.
Additionally, we own a 12 percent interest in a cod ash impoundment at the Iatan GeneratingStation and
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a 7.52%interest in a coal ash impoundment at Plum Point. The EPA has announced its intention to revise
its wastewater effluent limitation guidelines under the CWA for coal-fired power plants sometime in 2012,
Once the new guidelines are issued, the EFA and states would incorporate the new standards into
wastewater discharge permits, including permits for coal ash impoundments. We do not have sufficient
information at this time to estimate additional costs that might result fiom any new standards. All of the
coal ash impoundments are compliant with existing state and federal regulations.
On June 21,2010, the EPA proposed a new regulation pursuant to the Federal Resource Conservation
and Recovery Act (RCRA)governing the management and storage of Cod Combustion Residuals (CCR).
In the proposal, the EPA presents two options: (1) regulation of CCR under R C U subtitle C as a
hazardous waste and (2) reguIation of CCR under RCRA subtitle D as a non-hazardous waste. The public
comment period closed in November 2010. It is anticipated that the find regulation will be published in
mid to late 2012. We expect compliance with either option as proposed to result in the need to construct a
new landfill and the conversion of existing ash handling from a wet to a dry systern(s) at a potential cost of
up to $15 million at our Asbury and Riverton Power Plants. This preliminary estimatc will likely change
based on the final CCR rule and its requirements. We expect resulting costs to be recoverable in o w rates.
On September 23,2010 and on November 4,2010 representativesfrom GEI Consultants,on behalf of
the EPA, conducted on-site inspections of our Riverton and Asbury coal ash impoundments, respectively.
The consultantsperformed a visuaI inspection of the impoundments to assess the structural integrity of the
berms surrounding the impoundments, requested documentation related to construction of the
impoundments, and reviewed recently completed engineering evaluations of the impoundments and their
structural integrity. In response to the inspection comments, a qualified enacering firm has been sefected
to compIete the recommended geotechnical studies and instalI new flow monitoringdevices and settlement
monuments at both cod ash impoundments. The project is expected to be completed by December 2012.
The project will compIy with all corrective measures and recommendations made by the EPA in its site
assessment reports.
1pettewabie Etteqy

We have a 20-year purchased power agreement, which began on December 15, 2008, with Cloud
County Windfarm, LLC, owned by EDP Renewabfes North America LLC (formerly Horizon Wind
Energy), Houston, T w to purchase the energy generated at the approxhatdy 105-megawatt Phase 1
Meridian Way Wind Farm located in Cloud County, Kansas. We dso have a 20-year contract, which began
on December 15,2005, with Elk River Windfarm, LLC,owned by IBERDROLA RENEWABLE& Inc., to
purchase the energy generated at the 150-megawatt Elk River Wmdfarm located in 3utler County, Kansas.
We do not own any portion of either windfarm. More than 15% of the energy we put into the grid comes
from these long-term Purchased Power Agreements IpPAs). Through these PPAs, we generate about
900,000 renewable energy certificates (REG) each year. A REC represents one megawatt-hour of
renewable energy that has been delivered into the bulk power grid and “~nbundles’’the renewable
attributes kern tho associated energy. This unbundling is important because it cannot be determined where
the renewabIe cnergy is uItimately delivered once it enters the bulk power grid. As a result, RECS provide
an avenuc for renewable energy Backing and compliancc purposes.

On November 4, ZOOS, Missouri voters approved the Clean Energy Initiative (Proposition C). This
initiative requires us and other investor-owned utiIities in Missouri to generate or purchase electricity from
renewable energy sources, such as solar, wind, biomass and hydro power, or purchase REG, at the rate of
at least 2% of retail sales by 2011, increasing to at least 15% by 2021. W o percent of this amount must be
solar. We believe we are exempted from the solar requirement. A challenge to our exemption, brought by
two of our customers and Power Source SoIar, Inc., was dismissed on May 31, 2011 by the Missouri
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Western District Court of Appeak. The plaintiffs fled in the Missouri Supreme Court for transfer of the
case fTom the Missouri Western District to the Missouri Supreme Court. The transfer was denied.

Renewable energy standard compliance rules were published by the MPSC on July 7,2010.Missouri
investof-owned utiIities and others initiated litigation to chalIenge these ruIes. On June 30, 2011, a Cole
County Circuit Court judge ruled that portions of the MPSC d e s were unlawfid and unreasonable, in
confIict with Missouri statute and in violation of the Missouri Constitution. Subsequent to that decision, a
portion of the appeal was dropped and the entire order was stayed. On December 27, 2011 the judge
issued another order identical to the one that was stayed except that the ruhgs with regard to the
constitutionality issue had been omitted. We have satisfied the current compliance requirementsof'theruIe
requiring us and other investor-owned utilities in Missouri to generate or purchase electricity from
renewable energy sources at the rate of at least 2%of retail sdes by 2011,increasing to at least 15% by
2021.
Kansas established a renewable portfolio standard (RPS), effective Novembcr 19, 2010. It requires
10% of our Kansas retail customer peak capacity requirements to be sourced from rene\r;ables by 2011,
15% by 2016, and 20%by 2020. In addition, there are several proposals currently before the US. Congress
to adopt a nationwide RFS.

We have been selling the majority of our RE4&and pIan to continue to seli all or a portion of them
moving fonvard. As a resuIt of these REC sales, we cannot claim the underlying energy is renewable. Once
a REC has been claimed or retired, it cannot be used for any other purpose. At the end of 2011, sufficient
REO, including hydro, were retired to comply with the Missouri and Kansas requirements through the
end of November 2011. Additional RECs wiU be retired in January of 2012 to compIete the process for
2011. In the future, we will continue to retain a sufficient amount of REO to meet any current or future

RPS.
Gas Segment

The acquisition of our natural gas distribution assets in June 2006 involved the potential future
remediation of two former manufactured gas plant (FMGP) sites. FMGP Site #1 in ChilIicothe, Missouri
is listed in the MDNR Registry of Conhned Abandoned or Uncontrolled Hazardous Waste Disposal
Sites in Missouri. No remediation ofthis site is expected to be required in the near term. We have received
a Ietter stating no further action is required from the MDNR with respect to FMPG Site # in Marshall,
Missouri. W e have incurred $0.2 million in remediation costs and estimate further remediation costs at
these two sites to be minimal.
12. Segment Information

We operate our business as three segments: eIectric, gas and other. As part of our eIecrric segmcnt, we
also provide water senice io three towns in Missouri. The Empire District Gas Company is our wholIy
awned subsidiary formed to provide gas distribution service in Missouri. The other segment consists of our
non-regdated businesses subsidiary for our fiber optics business.
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The tables below present statement of income information. balance sheet information and capital
expenditures of our business segments.
For the rear ended December 31.
2011

Electric

Eliminations
.
.
Gas

Other

Total

Statement of Income Information:

...........................
............

Revenues
$524.276 $46.430 $6.756
Depreciation and amortization
58.236
3.494
1.807
Federal and state income taxes ............ 31.643
1.676
979
Operating income ..................... 88.590
6.514
1. 830
.
Interest income
554
259
Interest expense
37.860
3.910
8
Income from AFUDC (debt and equity) .....
509
3
Income from continuing operations ........ $ 50. 670 $ 2. 709 $1. 592

.......................
......................

I

Capita1 Expenditures

.................... $ 93.499

$ 4. 122

$3. 556

$576.870
63.537
34.298
96.934
555
41.520

512
$ 54.
971
$101.177

2010

Electric

ElIrnInabions
.
.
Gas

Othcr

Total

Statement of Income information:

Revenues ........................... 5484.715 $50.885 $6.268
$541.276
Depreciation and amortization
3.032 1.641
58.656
53.983
. 30.533
Federal and state income taxes
27. 925
1.620
988
. 80.495
Operating income
72.528
6.327 1.640
.
Interest income
i98
403
176
Interest expense
38.798
3.941
42.347
33
. . 10.174
Income from AFUDC (debt and equity) .....
10. 155
19
Income horn continuing operations ........ S 43. 187 $ 2. 602 $1. 607
$ 47.
3 9 6
$ Capital Eqenditures
$108.157
$100.146 S 5.242 $2.769
$ -

............
............
.....................
.......................
......................
....................

Electric

2009
Other

Elimhations
.
.
Gas

Total

Statement of Income Information:

...........................
............
.....................
.....................
......................
.....

Revenues
$434.897 $57.314 $5.562
$497.168
$(605)
. 51.494
Depreciation and amortization ............
48.036
I.443
2. 015
. 19.882
18.484
826
Federal and state income taxes
572
Operating income
68.414
4. 634
74.495
1.447
Interest income.,
225
403
217
Interest expense
3.95g
46.778
43.173
57
.
2
14.133
Income from AFUDC (debt and equity)
14. 131
$ 41.
2 9 6
Income from continuing operations ........ $ 39.07s $ 874 $1. 344
Capital Expenditures
$145.287 $ 2. 256 $1. 261
$148.504

....................
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Electric

Gad1'

December 31,2011
Other
Eliminations

Tohl

Balance Sheet Information:

lbtd assets

.......................

$1,931,320 $145,897 $26,038
EIectric

Balance Sheet Xnformation:
Total assets

.......................

51,837,910

$(81,420) $2,021,835

December 31,2010
Other
EUminntIons

Gas(''

$239,532 $23,163

$(79,294)

Total

$1,921,311

(1) Includes goodwilt of $39,492 at December 31,2011 and 2010.
13. Selected QuarterIy Information (Unaudited)

The following is a summary of quarterIy results for 2011 and 2010 (dollars in thousands except per
share amounts):
Quarters

Quarterly ResuIts for 2011

Second

First

...........................
.............................

Operating revenues..
Operating income.
Net Income ..................................
BasicEamingPerShare
Diluted Earnings Per Share., .....................

$150,728 $129,093 $164,284
$ 21,848 $ 19,134 $ 36,450

$132,765
$ 19,502

6 9,175

$ 8,690

$ 11,922

......................... $

Quarterly Results for 2010

S

$ 25,184

0.29 S

0.22

$

0.29

0.22

$

mat

............................ $139,893
.............................
S 16,078
..................................
$ 8,586
.........................
$ 0.22
..................... I 0.22

Operating revenues.
Operating income.
Nethcome
BasicEamhg Per Share
DilutedEamingsPerShare..

Fourth

Third

$

0.60 S
0.60 $

Quartes
Sccond
Third

0.21

0.21
FOUrlh

$114,482

$154,086 $132,815
$ 31,873 $ 18,265
$ 7,369 $ 22,981 $ 8,460
$ 0.18 $ 056 $ 0.20
$ 0.18 S 0.55 $ 0.20
$ 14,279

The sum of the quarterly earnings per share of common stock may not equal the earnings per share of
wmmon stock as computed on an annual basis due to rounding.

Earnings for the fourth quarter of 2011 were $8.7 milIion, or $0.21 per share, as compared
$8.5 million, or $0.20 per share, in the fourth quarter 2010.
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14, Risk Management and Derivative Financial Instruments

We engage in hedging activities in an effort to minimize OUT risk from volatiIe natural gas prices. We
enter into both physical and financid contracts with counterparties relating to our future natural gas
requirements that lock in prices (with respect to a range of predetermined percentages of our expected
future natural gas needs) in an attempt to lessen the voIatility in our fuel expenditures and gain
predictability. We recognize that if risk is not timety and adequately balanced or if counterparties fail to
perform contmctud obligations, actual resdts could differ materially from intended resuIts.
AI1 derivative instruments are recognized at fair value on the baIance sheet with the unrealized Iossw
or gains f ~ o mderivativesused to hedge our fuel.costs in our .electricsegment recorded in regulatory assets
or IiabiIities. All gains and losses from derivatives related to the gas segment are dso recorded in
regulatory assets or liabilities. This is in accordance with the ASC guidance on regulated operations, given
that those regulatory assets and liabilities are probable of recovery through our fuel adjustment
mechanism.

Risks and uncertainties affecting the determination of fair value include: market-conditions in the
energy industry, especialty the effects of price volatility, reguIatory and global political environments and
requirements, fair value estimations on Ionger term contracts, the effectiveness of the derivative
instrument in hedging the change in fair value of the hedged item, estimating underlying fuel demand and
counterparty ability to perform. If we estimate that we have overhedged forecasted demand,the gain or
loss on the overhedged portion WiIl be recognized immediatdy as fucl and purchased power expense in our
Consolidated Statement of Income and subject to our fuel adjustment clause.
As of December 31,2011 and 2010, we have recorded the following assets and Ihbdities representing
the fair vdue of derivative financial instruments held as of December 31, (in thousands):

ASSET DERWATIVES
Nun-designatedhedging instruments due lo regulaiory accounting
Balance Sbeet CIassifieation

Natural gas contracts, gas segment

Current assets - Prepaid expenses and
other
Non-current assets and deferred charges Other
Current assets - Prepaid expenses and
other
Non-current assets and deferred charges Other

2011 2010
Fair
Fair
VaIue
%he
- '

39
..........................
.......................... 2 117
Natural gas contracts, electric segment
..........................
77
.......................... - Total derivatives assets ...............................................
$2 $233
I

I
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2ou
2010
Fair
Fair

Derivativu designated as hedging irtstruments

Value
VaIue
Current liabilities .................. $ - $ Non-current liabilities and deferred
- credits ........................

Balance Sheet Classificatfon

Natural gas conttacts, electric segment

Non-designated as hedging instrumen& due to regubtoty accounting

.................. 967 252
........................
86
2
NaturaI gas contracts, e1ech-k segment
.................. 3,802 508
........................
4,995 3,562
Total derivatives liabilities ...........................................
$9,350 $4,324
- =

Natural gas contracts, gas segment

Current liabilities
Noaarrent liabilities and deferred
credits
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities and deferred
credits

Electric

At December 31, 2011, approximately $3.8 million of unrealized losses are applicable to financial
insmrnents which wilt settle within the next twelve months. Effecthe September 1,2008,in conjunction
with the implementation of the Missouri fuel adjustment clause in the July 2008 MPSC rate order, new
hedges are non-designated and the unrealized losses or gains are recorded in regulatory assets or liabilities.
This is in accordance with ASC guidance on accounting for regulated operations, given that those
regulatory assets and liabilities are probable of recovery through our fuel adjustment mechanism. Effective
December 2010 all remaining cash flow hedges entered into prior to September 1,2008 were de-designated
and the unrealized loss of $1.0 d o n was transferred from OCX to a regulatory asset. Unrealized gains
and Iosses are now recorded in regulatory assets or liabilities in accordance with the ASC guidance
mentioned.
The following tables set forth the actual pretax gains/(losses) and the mark to market effect of
unsettled positions from the qualified portion of ow hedging activities for settled contracts for the electric
segment for each of the years ended December 31, (in thousands):
Deriv&*vm in Cash H o w Hedging ReMonships -Electric

Segment
Amount of hsss
Reclassed fmm OCI
into Inwme

Income Stafemeut ClassiEication
of Loss on Derivative

Commodity conmcts
%tal Effective - EIectric Segment

Fuel and purchased power expense

. . ..............................
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(Effective Portion)
2010

2011

... $
- $(5,814)
$
- $(5,814}
-
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Derivatives in Cash Flow Hedging Relationships

-Electric Segment
hmountofhss

Recognized in O f 3
on Derivative
IEffectIve Podon)
Statement of Comprehensive Income

Commodity contracts
%tal Effective - Electric Segment

FueI and purchased power expense

................................

2011

2010

... $
- $(6,362)
$

-

$(6,362)

There were no “mark-to-market” pre-tax gains/(losses) from ineffective portions of our hedging
activities for the electric segment for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectivdy.

The following tables set forth “mark-to-market” pretax gains/ (losses) from non-designated derivative
instruments for the eIectric segment for each of the years ended December 31, (in thousands):
Non-Designated Hedging Instmmertts

-Due to Regulatory Accounfing EIectric Segment
Amount o r toss
Recognized on
Balancc Shect

Balance Sheet Classifidon
of t o s s on Dtrivative

Commodity contracts - electric
segment
Total-EElectrkSegment

Regulatoryassets

2011

................

2010

$(2,669)
- $(6,965)

--

....................................... $(6,965)

$(2,669)

Non-DesignatedHedging 1ttstrumenLr - Due to RegrrCrtoy Accounting Electric Segment

Statemenl of Operations Classification of toss
on Derivative

Commodity contracts
’Xbtal - Electric Segment

Fuel and purchased power expense

.......................................

...

Amount of h s s
RccognIzcd in Incomc
on Derivative
2011

2010

S(2,231)

$(752)

$(752)
-

We also enter into fixed-price forward physical contracts for the purchase of natura1 gas, coal and
purchased power. These contracts are not subject to fair vaIue accounting because they qualify €or the
normal purchase normal sale exemption. We have a process in pIace to determine if any future executed
contracts that othenrise qualify for the normal purchase normal saIe exception contain a price adjustment
feature and will account for these contracts accordingly.
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At December 31,2011, the following volumes and percentages of our anticipated vohme of natural
gas usage for our electric operations for 2012 and the next four years are hedged at the following average

prices per Dekatherm (Dth):
Year
-

IHedged

.......................
.......................
2014 .......................
2015 .......................
2016 .......................

2012

61%

2013

44%
20%
11%

0%

Dth Hedged
Physical

Dth Bcdged
Enancia1

Average Price

$6.459

2,511,000 1,420,000
2,020,000 1,440,000
460,000 1,240,000
1,010,000
-

$6.079

$5.514
$5.439

s -

I

We utilize the following procurement guidelines for our electric segment, allowing the flexibility to
hedge up to 100% of the current year's and 50% of any future year's expected requircments whik being
cognizant of volume risk. The SO% guideline is an annual target and volumes up to 100% can be hedged in
any given month. For years beyond year four, additional factors of long term uncertainty (incIudhg with
respect to required volumes and counterparty credit) are also considered.

-

End of Year
Minimum % Hedged

Ycar

.........................................
.............................................
...........................................
............................................
...........................................

Current..
First
Second
Third
Fourth

Up to 100%
60%
40%
20%
10%

Gas

We attempt to mitigate our natural gas price risk for our gas segment by a combination of (1) injecting
natural gas into storage during the off-heating season months, (2) purchasing physicaI forward contracts
and (3) purchasing financial derivative contracts. We target to have 95% of our storage capacity full by
November 1 for the upcoming winter heating season. As the winter progresses, gas is withdrawn horn
storage to serve our customers. As of Deccmbcr 31,2011 we had 1.5 million Dths in storage on the three
pipelines that serve our customers. This represents 76% of our storage capacity.

T h e following table sets forth our long-term hedge strategy of mitigating price voIatility for our
customers by hedging a minimum of expected gas usage for the current winter season and the next two
winter seasons by the beginning of the ACA year at September 1 and illustratcs our hedged position as of
December 31,2011 @th in thousands).

Season

Minimum %

Hedged

Dth Hedged

Finandal

.............................
50%
420
............................. Upto50% 700
..............................
Up to20% Total.. ............................
1,120

Current
Second
Third

Dth Hedged
PbysicaI

3f0

Dth in

Actual %
Hedged

-Storage

1,436
-

-

-

310

1,436

98%

16%

A Purchased Gas Adjustment (PGA}dame is included in our rates for our gas segment operations,
therefore, we mark to market any unrealized gains or losses and any realized gains or losses relating to
financial derivative contracts to a regulatory asset or regulatory liabirity account on our baIance sheet.
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T h e following table sets forth “mark-to-market” pre-tax gains I (losses) from derivatives not
designated as hedging instruments for the gas segment for the years ended December 31, (in thousands):
Non-Daigmted Hedp-ng Instruments Due to Regddmy Accounting

- Gus Segment
Amount of Inss

Recogniad an
Balance Sbect

BaIance Sheet Clsssiiiution
of h s s on Derivatlve

Commodity contracts
Total - Gas Segment

. . ... . .. .
. . . . . .. .. . . . . . . .. .. .. .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. .
Regulatory assets

.. .

;

2011

2010

S(1,91G)

$(626)
$(626)
-

$(1,916)

Contingent Fenfures

Certain of our derivative instnunents contain provisions that require our senior unsecured debt to
maintain an invesment grade credit rating with any reIevant credit rating agency. If our debt were to fall
below investment grade, it would be in vioIation of these provisions, and thc counterparties to the
derivative instruments couId request increased coIla?.teralizationon derivative instruments in net liability
positions. The aggregate fair value of all derivative instruments with thc credit-riskdated contingent
features that are in a liability position on December 31,2011 is $2.4 million for which we have posted no
coIIateral in the normal course of business. If the credit-risk-related contingent features underlying these
agreements were triggered on December 31, 201i, we wouId have been required to post $2.4 million of
colIatera1 with one of our counterparties. On December 31, 2011, we had no collateral posted with this
counterparty.
15. Fair Value Measurements

The accounting guidance on fair value measurements establishes a three-tier fair value hierarchy,
which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair vaIue. These tiers include: (i) Level 1, defined as quoted
prices in active markets for identical instruments; (ii) Lcvel2, defincd as inputs other &an quoted prices in
active markets that arc either directly or indirectly observable; and (iii) Level 3, defined as unobservable
inputs in which little or no market data exists, therefore requiring an entity to develop its own assumptions.
Our Level 2 fair d u e measurements consist of both quoted price inputs and inputs that are derived
principally from or corroborated by observable market data. Our Level 3 fair value measurements consist
of both quoted price inputs and unobservable quoted inputs.

The guidance also requires that the fair vdue measurement of assets and liabilities reflect the
nonperformance risk of counterparties and the reporting entity, as applicable. Therefore, using credit
default spreads, we factored the impact of our own credit standing and the credit standing of our
counterparties, as weU as any potential credit enhancements (e.g. collatcraI) into the consideration of
nonperformance risk for both derivative assets and Iiabilities. The rcsults of this analysis were not materid
to the financial statements.
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T h e following fair value hierarchy table presents information about our commodity conkacts
measured at fair value using the market value approach on a recurring basis as of December 31,2011:
Fair.ValueMeasurements at Reporting Date Using
Quoted Prices

Q in OM’S)
Desdption

AsseW(LIab1lities)
at Fair W u e

in Active
Markets
for Identical
ilssets

W e 1 1)

Significant
0thObservable
Jnputs
*el
2)

Sigiificant

Unobsemble
Inputs
Itepei 3)

December 31,2011
Net derivative liabilities*

................

$ (9,848)

$(9,848)

-

-

December 31,2010
Net derivative liabilities*

................

$ (4,091)

$(4,091)

-

-

*

The only recurring measurements are dcrhative related and assets and Iiabilities are netted together
in the table above.

T h e folIowing tables present the change in net fair value of our Level 3 assetsfliabilities during the
months ended December 31,2011 and 2010 (in thousands):

twehe

Fair Value Measurements Using Significant Unobservable Inputs (Level 3)
2009 Net
Derivativestl’

2011 Net
Derivativest”

($ in 000’s)

.......................
.........
Included in comprehensive income ..................
Purchases ......................................
Issuances..............
.........................
Settlemen. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
’xlransfers in and/or out of Level 3 . ....................
Ending Balance, December 31, .......................
Changes in unrealized gains relating to assets still held at
reporting date .................................

Beginning Balance, January 1,

Total gains or losses (realkedlunrealized)
Included in earnings (or changes in net assets).

I-

135

-

S 6,208

I

0-

=

(I) Net derivatives at December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 included no
liabilities.

$

$

-

$

-

derivative assets

$

1,738

or derivative
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16. Accounts Receivable

- Other

The following table sets forth the major components comprising "accounts receivable
our consolidated baIancc sheet (inthousands):

- other" on

December 31,

2010
-2011

Accounts receivable for plant reimbursements, line extensions, highway projects,

........................................................$ 811 $ 5,322
................ 5,516 10,807
Accounts receivable for energy trading margin deposit(2).................... 5,818
3,578
Accounts receivable for true-up on maintenance contracts(3) ................. 1,323
2,512
- 2,596
Accounts receivable for insurance proceeds for SLCC generator failure(4)........
Accounts receivable fiom Westar Generating, Inc., for commody-owned facility . .
1,642
636
Accounts receivable for gas se,ment ..................................
19
27
Accounts receivabk for non-regulated subsidjay companies .................
1,037
602
Other ......................................................... 103
65
Total Accounts Reccivable - Othcr ................................. =
$16,269 =
$25,445
etc.

Taxes receivable - ovcrpayment of estimated income taxed')

(1) Primarily due to the effects of Investment -mX Credits, and bonus depreciation, net of the payment
received from SWPA. See note 9 for further detail.
(2) The accounts receivable for energy trading margin deposit represents the balance in our brokerage
account. WMEX futures contracts are used in our hedging p r o m of natural gas which require
posting of margin.

(3) Represents quarterly estimated credits due fiom Siemens Westinghouse rdatcd to o w maintenance
contract for State Line Combined Cycle Unit (SLCC). Forty percent of this credit belongs to Westar
Generating, Inc., thc Q W ~ I S of 40% of the SLCC, and has been recorded in accounts payable.

(41 Represents the insurance proceeds for the failure of the State Line Combined Cycle Unit 2-1
generator. Forty percent of these proceeds belonged to Westar Generating, Inc., and were recorded in
accounts payable.
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17. Regulated Operating Expense

The following tabIe sets forth the major components comprising “regulated operating expenses”
under “OperatingRevenue Deductions” on our consolidated statements of income for the years ended (in
thousands):
December 31,
2010
2009
-2011

.......................

$13,277 $11,356 $12,315
Power operation expense (other than fueI)
11,063
Electric transmission and distriiution expense .................... 15,361 12,996
2,161
2,335
2,194
Natural gas transmission and distribution expense .................
11,618
10,597
10,210
Customer accounts & assistance expense
5,557
8,805
5,899
Employee pension expense(’).
7,439
EmpIoyee healthcare pian(')
5,908
6,930
10,158 11,584 10,070
General officesupplies and expense
12,896 12,211
Administrative and general expense.. .......................... 14,295
3,125
Bad debt expense.. ....................................... 3,425
3,651
79
87
168
Miscellaneous expense .....................................
ntal ................................................$85,442 $79,292 $73,086

........................
................................
.................................
...........................

-

~

(1) Does not include the capitalized portion of actuarially calculated costs, but reflects the G M P
expensed portion of these costs plus or minus costs deferred to a regulatory asset or recognized as a

regulatory liability for Missouri and Kansas jurisdictions.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITE ACC0U"ANTS ON ACCOU"G
E"GNcxAIL DISCLOSURE

AND

None.

KEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this report, an evaluation was carried O U under
~
the
supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer,of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and
procedures (as such term is dehned in Rule 13a-l5(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934). Based upon
that evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Ofiicer concluded that our disclosure
controls and procedures were effective as of December 31,2011.
Management's Report on InternaI Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over
financial reporting, as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-l5(f). Under the supervision and
with the participation of our management, inchding our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting
based on the hamework in the Internal ControI-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on this evaluation, our management
concluded that OUT internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31,2011.
Audit of Internal: ControI Over Financial Reporting

The effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,2011, has been
audited by PricewaterhouseCoopersUP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in
their report which appears herein.
Changes in Internal Control Over Financia1 Reporting

There have been no changes in our internal control over financid reporting that occurred during the
fourth quarter of 2011 that have materially affected, or are reasonably Ikely to materiaUy affect, our
internal control over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. O m R INFORMATION
None.
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PART III
KJM10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIYE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Except as set forth below, the information required by this Item may be found in our proxy statement
for our Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held April 26, 2012, wych is incorporated herein by
reference.
Pursuant to instruction 3 of paragraph (b) of Item 401 of Regulation S-K, the information required by
executive officers is set forth in Item 1 of Part X of this Form 10-K under
‘‘Eeptive Officers and Other OEcers of Empire-”

this Item with respect to

We have adopted a Code of Ethics for the Chief Executive Officer and Senior Financia1 Officers. A
copy of the code is avdabIe on our website at www.empiredistrict.com. Any future amendments or waivers
to the code will be posted on*ourwebsite at www.empiredistrict.com.
ITEM 11. EraECU”E COMPENSATION

Information required by this item may be found in our proxy statement for oiU Annual Meeting of
Stockholders to be held April 26,2012, which is incorporated herein by reference.
ITEM 12. SECURJTY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER ~
~
R
S

Except as set forth below, information required by this item may be found in our proxy statement for
our Annual Meeting ofStockholders to be held A p d 26,2012,which is incorporated herein by reference.

There are no arrangements the operation of which may at a subsequent date result in a change in
control of Empire.
Securities Authorized For Issuance Under Equity compensation Plans

We have four equity compensation plans, alI of which have been approved by shareholders, the 1996
Stock hcentive Plan, the 2006 Stock Incentive Plan, the Employee Stock Purchase PIan (ESPP) and the
Stock Unit PIan for Directors.
The following tabIe summarizes infomation about our equity compensation plans as of December 31,
2011:
(e) Number of securities
remaining available
(a) Number of securities

Issued upon exercise
o f outstandlng options,
warrants and righb.

to be

Plan Categoory

Equity compensation plans
approved by security holders.
~ q U i compensation
i
plans nor
approved by security holders TOTAL
.. ...

. . .. .. ..

..
..
. ..

473,245

473,245

=

@) Weighted-average
exercise price
of ouistandlng options,
warrants and rIghtd1’

for futurc issunace
under equity compensatfon
pIans (excluding securities
reflected in coIuma (a))

$20.40

1,123,374

-

$20.40

1,123,374

(1) The weighted average exercise price of $20.40 relates to 39,100 and 4,200 options granted to executive
officers h 2005 and 2004, respectivdy, under the 1996 Stock Incentive Plan, 34,800, 27,000, 5,400,
64,200 and 15,600 options granted to executive officers in 2010, 2009, 2008, 2007 and 2006,
respectively, under the 2006 Stock Incentive Plan and 70,756 subscriptions outstanding for our ESPR
T h e two stock incentive plans had a weighted average exercise price of $21.56 and the ESPP had an
exercise price of $17.27. There is no exercise price for 74,800 performance-basedstock awards and
3,433 time-vested restricted stock awards awarded under the 2006 Stock Incentive Pfans or for 133,956
units awarded under the Stock Unit Plan for Directors.
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XTEM U. CERTAIN RELATIONS€UI?S AND RELATED TRANSACICIONS, AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this Item may be found in our proxy statement for our Annual Meeting
of Stockholders to be hdd April 26,2Q12which is incorporated herein by reference.
l"JZM 14. PRINCIPAL A C C 0 l I " T FEm AND SERVTCES
The information required by this Item may be found in our proxy statement for our Annual Meeting
of Stockholders to be held April 26,2012 which is incorporated herein by reference.
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PART XV
ITEM 15 EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
Index to Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedule Covered by Report of
Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

...........................
2011 ..................................................................
Consolidated statements of comprehensive income for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31,2011.. .................................................
Consolidated statements of common stockholders’ equity for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31,2011 .............................................
Consolidated statements of cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31,2011.. ......................................................
Notes to consoIidated financial statements.. .......................................
Schedule for the years ended December 31,2011,2010 and 2009:
Schedule II - Valuation and qualifying accounts ..................................

ConsoIidated balance sheets at December 31,2011 and 2010
ConsoIidated statements of income for each of the three years in the period ended December 31,

64
66

67
68

69
71
146

AlI other schedules are omitted as the required information is either not present, is not present in
sufficient amounts, or the information required therein is inchded in the hnancial statements or notes
thereto.
List of Exhibits

The Restated Articles of Incorporation of Empire (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(a)
to Registration Statement No. 33-54539on Form $3).
By-law of Empire as amended October 31, 2002 (Incorporated by reference to W b i t 4(b)
to Annual Report on Form 10-Kfor year ended December 31,2002,File No. 1-3368).
Indenture of Mortgage and Deed of Trust dated as of September 1, 1944 and First
SuppIcmentaI Indenture thereto among Empire, The Bank of New York MeIlon Trust
Company, NA. and UMB Bank,N . k , (Incorporated by reference to Exhibits 3(1)and B(2)
to Form 10, FiIe NO. 1-3368).
Third SuppIemental Indenture to Indenture of Mortgage and Deed of Trust (Incorporated by
reference to Ehiiit 2(c) to Form S-7, File No. 2-59924).

Sixth through Eighth Supplemental Indentures to Indenture of Mortgage and Deed of Tmt
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2(c} to Form S-7,File No.2-59924).
Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture io Indenture of Mortgage and Deed of mst
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(f) to Registration Statement No. 33-56635 on
F o S-3).
~
Thmty-Second Supplemental Indenture dated as of November 1,1993 to Indenture of
Mortgage and Deed of Xust (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(k) to Annual Report on
Form 10-Kfor the year ended December 31,1993, File No. 1-3368).
Xventy-Third SuppIemental Indenture dated as of November 1, 1993 io Indenture of
Mortgage and Deed of ‘ h s t (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(I) to Annual Report on
Form 10-Kfor the year ended December 31, 1993, File No. 1-3368).
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Wenty-Fourth Supplemental Indenture dated as of March 1,1994 to Indenture of Mortgage
and Deed of Z u t (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(m) to Annual Report on
Form 10-Kfor the year ended December 31, 1993, File No. 1-3368).

Twenty-EighthSuppIemcntaI Indenture dated as of December 1, 1996 to Indenture of
Mortgage and Deed of Thst (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4 to Annual Report on
Form 10-Rfor the year ended December 31, 1996, FiIe No. 1-3368).
Thirty-First Supplemental hdenture dated as of March 26,2007 to Indenture of Mortgage
and Deed of Trust (Incorporated by refcrence to Exhiiit 4.1 to Current Report on Form S-K
dated March 26,2007 and filed March 28, 2007, File No. 1-3368).
Thirty-Second SuppIementaI Indenture dated as of March 11,2008 to Indcnture of Mortgage
and Deed of Trust (Incorporated by rcference to Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report on
Form 8-K dated March 11, 2008 and filed March 12,2005, File No. 1-3368).

Thirty-Third Supplemental hdcnhlre dated as of May 16,2008 to Indenture of Mortgage
and Deed of Trust (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K
dated May 16, ZOOS and fikd May 16, 2008,File No. 1-3368).
Thirty-Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of March 27, 2009, to hdenture of
Mortgage and Deed of Trust (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Current Report on
Form 8-Kdated March 27,2009 and filed March 30,2009, File No. 1-3368).

--Fifth
Supplemental Indenture, dated as of May 28,2010, to Indenture of Mortgage
and Deed of Trust (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Current Report OR Form 8-K
dated May 28, 2010 and filed May 28, 2010, File No. 1-3368).
Thiq-Sixth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of August 25,2010, to Indenture of Mortgage
and Deed of Tmt (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Current Report on Form 8%
dated August 25, 2010 and filed August 26, 2010, File No. 1-3368).
Thirty-Seventh Supplemental Indenture, dated as of June 9, 2011, to Indenture of Mortgage
and Deed of Trust (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report on
Form S-K dated June 9,2011 arid filed June 10,2011, File No, 2-3368).

Indenture for Unsecured Debt Securitics, dated as of September 10, 1999 between Empire
and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(v) to
Registration Statement No. 333-87015on Form S-3).
Securities ResoIution No. 4, dated as of June 10, 2003, of Empire under the Indenture for
Unsecured Debt Securities (Incorporated by refercncc to Exhibit 4 to Current Report on
Form S-Kdated June 10, 2003 and a e d July 29, 2003, File No. 1-3368).
Securities Resolution No. 5, dated as of Octobcr 29,2003, of Empire under the Indenture

for Unsecured Debt Securities (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4 to Quarterly Report
on Fom lo-Q for quarter ended September 30, 2003), Fife No. 1-3368).

Securities Resolution No. 6, dated as of June 27, 2005, of Empire under the hdenture for
Unsecured Debt Securities (Incorporated by refercnce to Exhibit 4.1 to Current Report on
Form 8-K dated June 27, 2005 and filed June 28, 2005, File No. 1-3368).
Bond Purchase Agreement dated June 1,2006 among The Empire District Gas Company
and the purchasers party thereto (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Current Report
on Form 8-K dated June 1, 2006 and filed June 6, 2006, File No. 1-3368).
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Indenture of Mortgage and Deed of Trust dated as of June 1,2006 by The Empire District
Gas Company,as Grantor, to Spencer R. Thornson, Deed of ' h s t Trustee for the Benefit of
The Bank of New York Trust Company, N A ,Bond Trustee, as Grantee (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Current Report on Form 8-K dated June 1, 2006 and filed June 6,
2006, File No. 1-3368).
First Supplemental Indenture of Mortgage and Deed of B u t dated as of June 1,2006 by
The Empire District Gas Company, as Grantor, to Spencer R. Thornson, Deed of Trust
Trustee for the Benefit of The Bank of New York B u s t Company, N A ,Bond Tnrstee, as
Grantee (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to Current Report on Form 8-K dated
June 1,2006 and med lune 6,2006,File No. 1-3368).

1996 Stock Incentive Plan (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Form S-8,File

NO.33-64639).$
First Amendment to 1996 Stock Incentive Plan. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit lo@)
to Annual Report on Form IO-K for the year ended December 31,2007,File No.1-3368).?
2006 Stock Incentive PIan (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(u) to Form S-8, File

NO.333-130075).t
First Amendment to 2006 Stock Incentive Plan. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit lO(d)
to AnnuaI Report on Form IO-K for the year ended December 31, 2007, File No. 1-3368l.t
Second Amendment to 2006 Stock Incentive Plan (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10(e) to Annual Report on Form IO-K for the year ended December 31, ZOOS, File
NO.1-336&).?
Deferred Compensation Plan for Directors as amended and restated effective January 1,
2008. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit lO(e) to Annual Report on Form 10-Kfor the
year ended December 31,2007).$

The Empire District Electric Company Change in Control Severance Pay Plan as amended
and restated effective January 1,2008. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1O(f) to Annual
Report OD Form 10-Kfor the year ended December 31,2007, File No. 1-3368).t

Form of Severance Pay Agreement under The Empire District EIectric Company Change h
Control Sevcmnce Pay Plan. (hcorporated by reference to Exhibit lO(g) to Annual Report
on Form 10-Kfor the year ended December 31, 2007, File No. 1-3368).?
The Empire District Electric Company Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan as amended
and restated effcctive January 1,2008. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit lo@) to Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,2007, File No. 1-3365).?

Retirement Plan for Directors as amended August I, 1998 (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit IO(a) to Form 10-Q for the quarter cnded September 30,1998, File No. 1-3368).?
Stock Unit Plan for Directors of The Empire District EIectric Company (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit lO{i) to Annual Report on Form IO-K for the year ended December 31,
2005, File No. 1-3368).?
F h t Amendment to Stock Unit Plan for Directors. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit lo@) to Annual Report on Form 10-Kfor the year ended December 31,2007, Fire
NO.1-3368).7

Summary of Annual Incentive Plan.(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit lO(1) to Annual
Report on Form 10-Kfor the year cnded December 31,2007, File No. 1-336Sl.f
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Form of Notice of Award of Dividend Equivalents. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10(n) to Annual Report on Form IO-K for the year ended December 31,2008, File

NO. 1-3368)T
Form of Notice of Award of Non-Qualified Stock Options. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10(0) to Annual Report on Form 10-Kfor the year ended December 31, ZOOS,File
NO.1-3368).7
Form of Notice of Award of Performance-BasedRestricted Stock. (Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit l o b ) to Annual Report on Fonn 10-Kfor the year ended December 31,2008,
FiIe NO.1-3368).?

Form of Notice of Award of Time-Based Restricted Stock.*t
Summary of Compensation of Non-Employee Directors. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 1O(q) to Annual Report on Form 10-Kfor the year ended December 31,2008,File

NO.1-3368).$
Form of Indemnity Agreement (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report
on Form 8-K dated February 5,2009 and filed February 10,2009, File No. 1-3368).t
Second Amended and Restated Unsecured Credit Agreement dated as of January 26,2010,
among The Empire District EIectric Company, UMB Bank, N.A. as administrative agent,
Bank of America, N.A., as syndication agent, Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., as documentation
agent, and the lenders named therein (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Current
Report on Form 8-K dated January 26,2010 and filed January 27,2010, Fib No. 1-3368).
Third Amended and Restated Unsecured Credit Agreement dated as of January 17, 2012,
among The Empire District Electric Company, UM3 Bank, NA. as admhismtive agent,
Bank of America, N.A.? as syndication agent, Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., as documentation
agent?and the lenders named therein (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Current
Report on Form 8-K dated January 17,2013and filed January 19,2012, File No. 1-3368).
Computation of Ratios of Earnings to Fixed Charges.*

Subsidiaries of Empire.*
Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers U.*
Powers of Attorney.*

Certification of Chief Executive OEcer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.*

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.*

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 W.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.*-

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C.Section 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbmes-Oxley Act of 2002.*-

144

(101) The fdowing financial information fiom T h e Empire District EIech-ic Company’s Annual
Report on Form 10-Kfor the period ended December 31,2011,filed with the SEC on
February 23,2012,formatted in Extensible Business Reporting Language (XBRL): (i> the
Consolidated Statements of Income for 2011,2010 and 2009, (ii) the Consolidated Bdance
Sheets at December 31,2011 and December 31,2010, (iii) the Consolidated Statements of
Cash Rows for 2011, 2010 and 2009, and (iv) Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.**

t

This exhibit is a compensatory pIan or arrangement as contempfated by Item 15(a)(3) of Form 10-K.

* Filed herewith.
** Pursuant to Rule 406T of Regulation S-T the XBRL dated information in Exhibit 101 to this Annual
Report on Form 10-Kshall not be deemed to be filed by the Company for purposes of Section 18 or
any other provision of the Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
This certification accompanies this Report pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
and shall not be deemed fded by the Company for purposes of Section 18 or any other provision of the

-

Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
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SCHEDULE II
Valuation md QuaIifying Accounts
E R ~ended
S December 31, 2011, 2OIU and 2009:
Dednctions From
AdditIQnS
Charged to Other A C C O M ~

Balance At
Beginning

beme

charged

OfPerhd ToInmme

DescrIp~on

Amount

Description

Amount

Balance At
Close of
Perid

Year ended December 31,2011:

Reserve deducted horn assets:
aavmulated provision for
unmIlectiile accounts.

Recovery of
amounts previously
$ 8 6 5 3 6 $3,731,630

written off

Amounts
$1,847,527 written off

$5,312,749 $1,U7,644

Year ended December 31,2010:

Reserve deducted h m assets:
accumdated provision for
uncoUeEtible accounts.

Recovery of

amounts previously
$1,086,553 $3,601,064

written off

hunts
$

833,113 written off $4,661,796 $ 865,236

Year ended December 31,2009:

Recovery of

Reserve deducted from WW:
accumulated provision for

unwllectiile BccDunts.

$1,265,4421 $3,109,679

amounts previously
Acmurlts
written off
$1331,820 written off
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%4,8XJ,M7 61,086,853

SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or E(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized.

THE EMPIRE DISTRICT ELECTlUC COMPANY
Date: February 23,2012

By lsl BRADLEY f. BEECHER
Bradley P. Beecher, President and

Chief Executive Officer
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed
below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the date indicated.

Id BRADLEY P. BEE-R
Bradley P. Beecher, President,
Chief Executive Officer, Director

Date: February 23,2012

(Principal Executive Officer)
Id MURIE A. D E M O
Laurie A Delano, Vice President-Finance
(Principal Financial Officer)
IS/ ROBERT W.SAGER
Robert W.Sager, Controller, Assistant
Secretary and Assistant lkeasurer
(Principal Accounting Officer)
Id D.RANDY W Y *
D.Randy Laney, Director
Is/ KENNETH R. ALLEN*
Kenneth R. Men, Director
Id PAUL R PORTNEY*
Paul R. Pomey, Director
ld ROSS C. JURTLEY*
Ross C. Hartley, DireGoT
Id HERBERT J. SCHMIDT*
Herbert 1. Schmidt, Director
Id THOMAS OHLMACHER*
Thomas Ohhacher, Director
/SI E. THOMAS MUELLER*
B. Thomas MuclIer, Director
Id C.JAMES SULLIVAN*
C.James Sullivan, Director
Id BONNIE C. LIND*
Bonnie C.Lind, Director
Id LAURIE A. DELANO
*By (Laurie A. Delano, as attorney in fact for
each of the persons indicated)
~~

~~
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Computation of Ratios of Earnings to Fixed Charges
Year ended December 31.

Income before provision for
income taxes and fixed
charges (Note A)

......

Fixed Charges:
Interest on long-term debt
Interest on short-term
debt
Interest on trust preferred
securities
Other interest
Rental expense
representative of an
interest factor (Note B)
Total fixed charges..
Ratio of earnings to fixed
charges

..............
...........
.........
....
..............

2011

2010

$136,980,092

5125.706.43

$ 42,580,987

S 41,955,541 I 42,084,023

86,406
I

2007

2008

2009

$114.457-760 $108,185.260

$91,690.922

$ 36,040,957

$31,120,122

630,913

1,124,883

1,853,682

2,940,317

2,089,583

4,250,000

4,250,000

4,250,000

1,152,588

1,069,206

(680,863)

(1,147,472)

(2,332,5530)

6.190.709

5430.863

6.501.484

$ 47,710,630

$ 47,777,370

S 53,279,527

2.87

2.63

2.15

6,040,062 4,686,748
$ 49,337,289 $44,066,393
2.19

2.0s

NOTE A: For the purpose of determining earnings in the caIcuIation of the ratio, net income has been
increased by the provision for income taxes, non-operatingincome taxes and by the SUM offixed charges as
shown above.
NOTE B: One-third of rental expense (which approximatesthe interest factor).

EXHIBIT (31)(a)
CERTIFICATION OF CBlEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF TElE

SAR3ANES-OxLEXACT OF 2002
I, Bradley P. Beecher, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this annual rcport on Form 10-Kof The Empire District Electric Company;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or
omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under
which such statements were made, not mideading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of
the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant‘s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as dehned in Exchange Act Rules 13a-l5(e) and 15d-15(e)) and
internd control over hancial reporting (as d e h e d in Exchange Act Rules 13a-lS(f) and 15d-l5(f)) for the
registrant and we have:
a.

designed such disdosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information
relating to the registrant, including its consoIidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being
prepared;

b.

designed such internal control over iinancia1 reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliabiIity of financial reporting and the preparation of hancial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c.

evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and
prescnted in this report our condusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls
and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation;
and

d.

disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’sinternal control over financial reporting
that occurred during the rcgistrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal
quarter in the m e of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably EeIy to
materially af€ect, the registrant‘s internal controI over financial reporting; and

5. T h e registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent
evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee
of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting which are reasonabIy likely to adversely affect the
registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
b. any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have
a significant role in the registrant’s internaI control over financial reporting.
Date: February 23,2012
B y /SI Bradley P. Beecher
Name: Bradley P. Beecher
Title: President and Chief Executive Officer
a.

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL bFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECUON 302 OF
SARBANXS-OXLEYACT OF 2002
I, Laurie A. Delano, c c r t q that:

1.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-Kof The Empire District Electric Company;

2. Based on my knowledge,this report does not contain any untrue statement of a materia1 fact or
omit to state a material fact n e k a r y to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under
which such statements were madc, not misleading with respect to thc period covered by this report;

3. Based on my howledge, the h a n c i d statements, and other tinancia1 information included in this
report, fairly present in all materid respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of
the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. Thc registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-l5(e) and 15d-l5(e)) and
internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-l5(f) and 15d-lS(f)) for the
registrant and we have:
a.

designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supenision, to ensure that material information
relating to the registrant, including its consolidatcd subsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being
prepared;

b. designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliabiIity of hnancid reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
cxternal purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
c.

evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s discIosure controls and procedures and
prcsented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the discIosure controls
and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation;
and

d.

disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting
that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal
quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonablylikely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have discloscd, based on our most recent
evaluation of internal control over financia1 reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee
of the rcgistrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
a.

all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internd
control over financid reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the
registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report &amid information; and

b. any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have
a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.
Date: February 23,2012

By: /s/ Laurie A. Delano
Name: Laurie A DeIano
Title: Vice President - Finance and Chief Financial Officer

EXHlBm (32)(a)
Certification of Chief Executive m c e r Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
As Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-OxleyAct 0€2002 *

In connectionwith the Annual Report of The Empire District Electric Company (the “Company”) on
Form 10-Kfor the period ending December 31, 2011 as Hed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), Bradley €! Beecher, as Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-OxleyAct of 2002, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsof section 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934; and
2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all materid respects, the financial
condition and result of operations of the Company.

By Id Bradley l? Eeechec
Name: Bradley P. Beecher
Title: President and Chief Executive Officer

Date: February 23,2012
A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 or other dowment authenticating,
acknowledging or otherwise adopting the signature that appears in typed form within the electronicversion
of this written statement required by Section 906, has been provided to The Empire District EIectric
Company and wilI be retained by The Empire District EIectric Company and furnished to the Securities
and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.

E m m (32)(b)
Certification of Chief Financia1 OlEcer Pursuant to 18 U.S,C, Section 1350,
As Adapted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of The Empire District Electric Company (the “Companf’) on
Form IO-K for the period ending December 31, 2011 as filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission OR the date hereof (the “Report”), Laurie A. Delano, as Chief Financial Officer of the
Company, certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-OxleyAct of 2002, that:
1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934; and
2. The information contained in thc Report fairly presents, in dl material respects, the financial
condition and result of operations of the Company.
By: Is! Laurie A. DeIano
Name: Laurie A. Delano
Xtle: Vice President - Finance and Chief Financial Officer
Date: February 23,2012
A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 or other document authenticating,
acknowledgingor otherwise adopting the signature that appears in typed form within the electronic version
of this written statement required by Section 906, has been provided to The Empire District Electric
Company and will be retained by T h e Empire District Electric Company and furnished to the Securities
and Exchange Commission or its sta€€ upon request.

